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Our MissioN
Kos is committed to being a leading provider of specialty pharmaceuticals.
Our Company will improve human health and quality of life through
our innovation in drug-delivery systems, product development and commercialization.
The Kos culture, rich in spirit, fosters peak performance for the benefit of patients,

healthcare practitioners, customers, shareholders and employees.
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R ror: Rapid and Sustainable Financial Growth

Kos genei zzred $ 49 7 mzllzon in revenue for the yem a $ 2 03 million increase froir the $294 willion

(Te/zemted in 2003 and the lﬂ7ge5t increase in the Compmzys history.

To OQur Fellow Shareholders:

Since Kos was founded in 1988, our vision has been to create a successful and fully integrated specialty pharma-

ceutical company—a cohesive organization capable of internally developing, manufacturing and marketing

innovative medicines for the treatment of chronic diseases with high unmet need. Today, we have realized this vision

by leveraging the investments made in our infrastructure to generate dramatic gains on both the top and bottom

lines, thus turning Kos into one of tbe fastest growmg specialty pbarmaceutzcal compames in the Umted States

in 2004 :

We achieved this status as a direct result of cdntinuing’ to accomplish or exceed our financial and operating
7+ objectives with a strong focus on peak performance and excellence in execution. In fact, 2004 stands out as one

of the most exciting years in Kos’ history. During the year, we:

. o grew absolute revenue in excess of $200 million from 2003 to $497 million
» increased revenue an impressive 69%, maintaining a similar growth to 2003
» more than doubled netiincome from 2003 )
¢ generated nearly $200 million in cash from operations, the most in the Company’s history
o acquired Azmacort®, a product already highly accretive in its first year and generating high levels of positive
cash flow
. expanded the availability of our cholesterol franchise around the world
s progressed and enhanced our R&D pipeline and strengthened our intellectual property portfolio
¢ increased our employee base and sales force and maintained a low, below-industry turnover rate

The October 2004 édition of Pharmaceutical Executive Magazine described Kos as “a kind of clinical trial for an
important business model”. Indeed, during this “trial”, we have maintained a consistent focus on building every
aspect of our business. And much like a-well-formulated medicine, this discipline has proven its value by yielding
impressive financial results, a differentiated product portfolio, a robust research and development pipeline and

a track record of highly successful partnerships. Collectively, these results present convincing evidence that our
fully integrated business. model is working. Moreover, they demonstrate to the marketplace what we have known
for some time—namely, that Kos has found a prescription for success in pioneering medicines for a better life.

Rapid and Sustamable Financial Growth

- Chief among our 2004 accomplishments was the fact that we posted our second consecutive full year of operating
profitability, putting Kos in its strongest financial position. Our 2004 revenue grew 69% to $497 million, our
net income surged 140% to a record $142 million and our earnings per share rose to $3.13, an increase of 105%.
We also continued to demonstrate our fiscal respon51b111ty by exercising tight control of expenses and making
prudent, measured investments across all areas of the business, in particular research and development, sales and

[

marketing and technical operations. Such measured investments contributed to continued gains in efficiencies,
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R ror: Excellence in Product Commercialization . -

" The company geiterated a remavkable $ Z 96 million in cash from operations, or $ 2 76 million since its cash

breakeven point abour 30 months ago.

with >overa,11 "gro‘ss' margins of 93% duririg the last quarter of 2004, and sustained quarterly improvements in”
operating margins reaching’a record 35‘?/0‘ at year—jend: In fact, during 2004, operating margins more than doubled

" in absolute dollars (excluding éne-time charges), demonstrating the-dramatic leverage we were able to extract from
. our fully integrated business model., o : T ' o

Wit‘h're;'spéct to-the ever-important tneasure of cash flow, the Company generated a remarkable $196 million in cash
" fror operations, représenting a 253% increase frém 2003, enabling us to close the year with a cash balance of
* $259 million. Since th.e'Compér‘ly,réé'c.:hed the cash breakeven point only 2% years ago, we have generated $276
- million in cash from operations. Th‘fsAcqrréncy-uaff(‘)rdsjus the opportunity to pursue many of our strategic initia-
' tives, such as self-funding the‘ﬁcqﬁiéitioq of other pro’_duéts, broadening our portfolio through investments in -,
few research and dévelopment and through' the spopsorédreséar‘ch alliances we established in the area of HDL-C
- (the “good” cholesterol). La§t1y, in 2004, we reducéd"d:ebt by 37% to $19 million, the lowest level in six years.

We also éondnhed to leverage our-marketing agreerﬁenp iv:ith Merck KGaA, Se_curing approvals to market Niaspan®
in rﬁajor‘Eﬁropean countries, resulting in $5 million'in milestone paynients to the Company. As Mefck KGaA
- ‘Tamps up the marketing of Niaspan-in thé approved countries in the coming years, we expect to start to reap the
. financigl’b_énefits t'hroug‘h’royalty paym_er‘it's;‘We ilso S}iCCessfully defended ohr(Advz’c_or@t\rademark in our litiga- -
tion against Andrx Laboratories, Inc. (Andrx) for trademark infringement, prompting Andrx to cease using the
‘Altgeor trademark for its Eholéstéro}' product and re:sultiri‘g.‘in 2 $6 million settlement paymént from Andrx to-Kos.

" . While we were delighted with our financial and éperational-achievememsin 2004, we were diéapp‘ointéd that our ~

‘ st_oc_k price did not fullj? reflect the exémplary operating performance. Obviously, the ongoing pétent lit‘igation'

: with'Barf Laboratories, Inc. (Barr) relating to Niaspan: continued to weigh on the stock; h‘c_)‘wever,‘strdte‘:'gically and -
“financially sound transactions, like the dcquisition of Agmacort, will broaden the overall revenue contribution for
‘the Company. Moreovet, the.patent portfolio for our Niaspan franchise increased to six patents, compared With

"+ the two we had at the beginning of the litigation. S ' s " '
Excell"ven'cev in Product Commérciél'izétfon ‘ » : ) . R _

Our products fulfill a criticaland growing area of dnthet need. The American Heart Association (AHA) published
revised data thatshows that'70 milljoﬁ Americans haye_cérdioyas_ciilar disease (CVD), almost 1 nﬁlli(‘)n,people :
-died of the disease'in 2002":‘1nd the rélated cost was over $393 billion. CVD accounted for 38% of alll;deaiths,' or,
1 of every 2.6 deaths in the ,Unit_ed"Svta:tes'.‘ ‘Since 1900;’~CVD has been the number-one killer in the United States
every year but 1918, anid CVD claims more livés than the next five leading causes of death combined. One of the
key factors in avoiding and treating CVD ds to manage all four of ‘the major lipid parameters,_LDL-C (the “bad”

“¢holesterol), HDL—C, tfiglycgridéé and 1ippprqtein (a)‘[Lp'(a)]’(the “really bad"f cholesterol).
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Much like a well-formulated medicine, consistent focus on building our business has

resulted in impressive financial results, a differentiated product portfolio, a robust

research and development pipeline and a track record of highly successful partnerships.
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R For: Excellence in Product Commercialization

NI Sp@m revenue z77cv’eared 42% to a record $ 3 2 .Z million while Ad ViCOor:

NACIN EXTENDED-RELEASE/
NIACIN ETsmwams
sales zncremed 60% to $ _Z 08 million. LOUSTATIN TRELETS

Niaspan (niacin extended-release tablets) remains the most potent, patient-friendly HDL-C drug on the market
and significantly raises HDL-C by nearly 30%. Nzaypﬂn also significantly lowers triglycerides and Lp(a). This
proprietary niacin formulation is the only once-daily prescription niacin therapy approved by the United States
Food and'Drug Administration (FDA) to treat lipid disorders.

Advicor (a single tablet combination of Niaspan and lovastatin) gives doctors a convenient and safe option for the
treatment of mixed dyslipidemia and is the first dual-component tablet medication that targets all four major lipid

* parameters [LDL-C, HDL-C, triglycerides and Lp(a).] This therapy has become increasingly important as new
reséarch demonstrates that merely having low LDL-C is not enough to decrease the potential for a coronary event
or to treat heart disease. Lowering LDL-C alone fails to prevent approximately 60%-70% of heart attacks and
deatbs related to coronary disease, and studies such as HATS and ARBITER 2 demonstrate how patients may
have further improvement in terms of a reduced risk of coronary events and plaque build-up with a combination
of niacin and a statin.

Partly as a result of thes_e studies, our products continued to enjoy exceptionally strong growth in 2004, Niaspan
revenue increased 42% to a record $321 million, while Advicor sales increased 60% to $108 million. This robust growth
was also fueled by the continued quality education and promotion of our products. The successful integration of
the co-promotion arrangement with Takeda Pharmaceuticals North America, Inc. (Takeda) resulted in increased
reach and frequency and more than doubled the riumber of physicians we called on to a total of 94,000 physicians.
These targeted doctors account for 74% of all cholesterol prescriptions written. Moreover, Takeda has brought
Niaspan to-over 50,000 new doctors, mainly primary care physicians, and in only nine months has resulted in market
share growth of 21% within this physician group. The combined power of the Kos and Takeda sales forces has
reinforced the value of Niaspan and Advicor to medical professionals, driving a strong intent-to-use and hence -
capitalizing on significant, still untapped prescription potential. Since the start of the co-promotion, our market’
share has increased 16%. As a result, Kos achieved record franchise market share of 3.38% of total prescriptions
of the overall cholesterol market and 3.8% of new prescriptions. This resulted in total prescription franchise
growth of 22% year over year, alinost twice as fast as the rate of growth of the overall market. This was achieved
in the face of major new product launches qnd consequent increased messages around the LDL story. Our
growth in the face of this competition reflects a true prescription for success.

We extended our commercial reach by entering the respiratory market in 2004 with the purchase of Azmacort
from Aventis Pharmaceuticals Holdings Inc. (Aventis) in-March 2004. Azmacort (triamcinolone acetonide) is an
inhaled corticosteroid that alleviates inflammation in the lungs and is used as prophylactic therapy for the main-
tenance treatment of asthma. Azmacort, which incorporates a unique spacer delivery system, is indicated for those
* with mild to moderate asthma, which represent more than 90% of all asthma patients. The market for these prod-
ucts is large and rapidly growing. According to the American Lung Association, an estimated 20 million Americans,
or 7% of the population, have been diagnosed with different forms of asthma. This disease accounts for about
15 million lost workdays for adults and incurs an estimated annual economic cost of $16 billion to our nation.

Kos’ Prescription for Success 5
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R ror: Connection to Our Customers.

L We e.xteﬁded our contrmer il caih by enter. ing : tbe 7esprmro7 Y mar ker with the purchase of Aanacort =
{tiamicinclone acetonide}

‘wb/c/J contr 1bu26d satles af $ 6 8 mzllzon f07 the nine- mont/y pef tod we owned the pr oduct m 7004

' Desp1te its compelhng beneﬁts when we acqurred Azmﬂcart the product was plagued w1th declining sales as a
. result of non-promotion by Aventis for several years. Recogmzrng the inherent value of this time-tested, patient-
frrendly asthma product, we took 1mmed1ate steps to reverse the decline. The first of these was to hire a - 50- -person
 specialty sales force who, in addition to:our existing sales Tepresentatives, are specifically targeting the allergists
and pulmonologrsts In our market research, we-have now learned that 65% of primary care and 53% of respiratory
~ specialists queried stated that they would “defmltely” or probably” prescribe Azmacort. Moreover, 41% of doctors
questioned said they have a renewed interest in prescribing, v whereas only 1% of such doctors stated }ust one year
_ ago that they 1ntended to. mcrease prescrrpuons for Azmacmt ‘

: The purchase of Azmacort represents our flrst commermal foray into the rapidly growmg respiratory drsease

- market. The market for asthma products in the United States was $8 billion in 2004 and grew 14% from 2003.

. Including the first quarter of 2004 (before Kos- began recordmg sales), sales for Azmacort for full year 2004 were
"$93 mllhon shghtly sutpassing the $88 million of sales regrstered in'the prevrous year. I

. Connectlon to Our Customers - Co
In 2004, there was heightened awareness regardmg the need-to raise HDL-C and to address all the ma]or 11p1d

*. parameters. Thé media embraced these topics and more than’ 170 mllhon references were disséminated in print,
online, telévision and radio forums during the year. In addrtron in February 2004—“heart month”—the AHA -
raised its gurdehnes for HDL-C in women from 40 mg/dl to 50 mg/dl. The new guidelines also recommended
‘that women mairitain tr1glycerrde levels below 150 mg/dl, a 25 % change from past guldelmes ‘These new guidelines
'essentrally tnpled the number of women who are candidates for despzzn and Advicor therapy to about 28 million. ~

" ‘Equally important, the gu1dellnes cautloned medlcal practrtloners agamst using non- prescr1pt10n forms of

- extended-release niacins or extended-release dretary supplements as such preparations have shown’ potentlal
risks of liver damage and have not been approved as drugs by the FDA. The only FDA-approved extended-release
niacin on the market is Nigspan and in January 2004, the AHA awarded Kos “Pbarmaceutical Partner of the
Year” because of its contributions to, medlcme ‘namely its development of innovative therapies to- treat HDL C.
In another example of commitment to our customers, we frlled 21,013 requests for free product among 12,726
patlents who could not otherw1se afford our crxtleallv necessary ‘therapies. . °

The ARBITER 2 data released in November at the AHA’s late- breakmg news Scientific Sessions, showmg dramtic
improvements' in heart dlsease risk with Niaspan therapy added to a background of statin treatment, was well
received and generated extensive medra coverage. This was embraced by an extremely wide physician group and.

' resulted in a greater adopt10n by phys1c1ans of the need to treat beyond just LDL- C Thls bodes well for doctors

~ and patlents and offers further opportumtres for a prescrzptzon for success. '

 ERCHK

EUTICALS INC.
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Lowering LDL-C alone fails to prevent approximately 60%-70% of heart attacks

and deaths, and studies such as HATS and ARBITER 2 demonstrate how paticnts

may have further improvement in terms of reduced risk of coronary cvents.




The currency we have accumulated affords us the opportunity to pursue many of our

strategic initiatives, such as self-funding the acquisition of other products and

broadening our portfolio through investments in new research and development.
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R ror: Aggressive Business Development and Licensing

Niaspan has now been approved for mavketing in 1 3 C OZM/ZZ’ V'LES outside the United States, including such

large markets as Germany, France and the United Kingdom.

Throughout the year, our sales force and professional services staff organized numerous medical educational
programs, featuring national thought leaders from around the nation. These were very well attended and we
believe led to greater awareness and adoption of our differentiated therapies. We consider our sales force to have
the most talented cardiovascular and respiratory representatives in the marketplace. They have not only garnered
great relationships with their customers, but also with their Takeda counterparts. The combined sales forces have
been instrumental in securing the increasing acceptance by the medical community of the importance of treating
multiple lipid disorders in fighting heart disease. We also look forward to the Kos sales force, especially with the
addition of the specialty force, contmumg to turn around sales of Azmacort and return it to growth.

Lastly, from an investor and public relations perspective, we worked diligently to communicate the compelling -
Kos story to the marketplace, culminating with Kos being featured as the cover story in the October 2004 issue
of Pharmaceutical Executive Magazine. We also welcomed three new research analysts to Kos’ coverage universe

* and significantly broadened our institutional shareholder base. We added two new members to our Board of
Directors, one of whom comes to Kos with extensive accounting and finance experience and has been appointed -
by the Board of Directors as Chairman of the Audit Committee. We also successfully completed our Sarbanes-
Oxley 404 certification, an exhaustive, year-long review and assessment of internal controls relating to our
financial statements and disclosures.

Aggresswe Busmess Development and Licensing

As mentioned earlier, one of the most outstanding events of the year was the acquisition of Azmacort from Aventis.
This was a highly beneficial acquisition for Kos for.a number of reasons. First, Kos fulfills its original strategic
premise to become a specialty cardiovascular and respiratory pharmaceutical company and now participates in
two of the largest and fastest growing multi-billion therapeutic categories in the pharmaceutical industry. Second,
we completed the transaction for $206 million, or just 2.3 times sales, making it highly accretive in only nine
months, generating sizable cash from operations in 2004. We plan to use the cash flow from this acquisition,
along with our existing inhalation expertise and infrastructure, to develop a variety of other highly differentiated
inhalation therapies, incorporating our novel and proprietary metered dose inhaler devices (MDI) and electronic
dose counters. Such new offerings should enhance Kos’ posmon in the respiratory marketplace and will fuel
further organic sales growth into the future.

We also made marked progress in securing approvals to market Niaspan outside of the U.S. with Merck KGaA.
The first launch of Niaspan in the United Kingdom in November 2003 was followed by the completion of the -
European Union’s Mutual Recognition Procedure (MRP) in December 2003. This paved the way for approvals
for Niaspan in a total of 14 European markets. Niaspan has now been approved in 13 of those Eurepean countries
since the completion of the MRP process, which include the large markets of the U.X., Germany and France,
 in addition to others including Austria, Ireland, Belgium and the Netherlands. It is estimated that more than 84
million patients, nearly twice as many as in the United States, are living with dyslipidemia in Europe and only
12 million are receiving therapy. Merck KGaA and Kos are now planning to initiate, during the second half of

Kos’ Prescription for Success 9
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| R ' FoR: Leed'ersh,ip In Ta‘rgeted. Research \a‘nd Devélopment Area‘s,

X Tbe results of tbe pbme lla ZW%MZZ@ d ZWS M/Z%Z tmzl s/yowed that the formulatzon is compﬂmble

o t/Je mar/eet-leadzng znjecmble mszdm in controllzng blooa’ glucose level:, while also reduczng blood lipids such

zzr LDL sznd trzplyteuder ‘

2005 a second wave of the MRP for the addltjonal 10 European countries that were recently added to the list of
* European Union (EU) countries. Nzaspan has also been approved in other countries outside the EU, 1nclud1ng
. Lebanon and certain Latin Amer1can countries. Our successful and aligned relationship with Merck KGaA is
invaluable in that it continues to pr0v1de us with new opportunltres to bring the world’s only HDL- rarsrng
drugs to an expanded area of the globe ' ' :

' We have been aggressrvelv pursumg other busmess development and llcensmg initiatives as well in2004. We
‘continue. to investigate opportunltles in ]apan for, potential product and corporate leads. We are extremely active in
‘seekmg a development partner for our inhaled “insulin product and have made progress in this regard with several

- interested parties. In addition, we'are screenlng numerous products tor potentlal acquisition with the objective

. of bolstering and broadenmg our portfolro Our growrng cash reserve better | posrtrons us to be successful w1th

these 1nxtrat1ves »

We establrshed sponsored research alhances w1th Triad Pharmaceut1cals Inc (Tr1ad) and the Umver51ty of Calrforma :
‘ Irvine to develop novel modulators for raising HDL-C. These alliances will broaden Kos research and development.
efforts to include the dlscovery and synthe51s of new chemical entities, leveraging Kos’ éxisting competency in -
_drug delivery and development partrcularly for solid dose therapies. Through this collaboration we have already
made considerable progress in 1dent1fy1ng several promrsmg leads covering improved analogs, certain undisclosed o
enzyme inhibitors and apo A-1 mimetics. Triad antlcrpates completing proof-of-principle preclinical efficacy
studies within the riext12 to 18 months, These promising drug candidates could perpetuate Kos’ current leader— :
sh1p posmon in the HDL therapeutrc category and fortrfy our long -term growth prospects o
- {Leadershlp in Targeted Research and Development Areas .
- Continuous commltment toR&D isa ‘Kos hallmark, and we have a number of p promising products in our p1pel1ne
L We are developing a modified formulatron of Niaspan and a 1000 mg/40 mg strength of Advicor. We have 3 new .
NDA programs/products in development one assessing the. potential use of Nzaspﬂn/lovastatm for peripheral” "
( »arterlal disease; a new anti-dyslipidemic. product that combines simvastatin with Niaspan; and a dual regulator
product for glucose and lipids,for the cardio-metabolic disease area, ‘for which we filed an Investlgatronal New
‘ Drug (IND) application in December 2004 The ﬁlmg was accepted by the FDA in January 2005 and the product

is now in formulatron development

‘_'Our'purcha'se of Azma\co:rt inclu:ded‘ the rights to complete the development and seek regulatory approval of the -

‘ - hydrofluoroalkane (HFA) ‘environmentall‘y safe propellant version of Azmacort. The HFA version had already

. received an. approvable status from the FDA when we acquired, the franchise, subject to completion of further :

- 'CMC work which Kos has now’ taken on board Kos already has extensive intellectual property (43 patents) and
competencres in the 1nhalatron area, ‘commencing with the 1993 purchase of Aeropharm Technology, Inc.

. (now. Aeropharm Technology, LLC) and the- subsequent purchase of IEP Group, Inc. (now IEP Pharmaceutical -
. Devices, LLC), a biomedical engineering company focused on developing innovative, ergonomic and proprietary- .

. o
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The ARBITER 2 data, published in the November 2004 issue of

Circulation, showed that Niaspan plus a statin reduced plaque buildup

by 68% compared with statin monotherapy.
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R rFor: Leadership in Targeted Résearch and“DeveIopment Areas

Our continued ex L‘epi‘ZOWﬂ[f?@d%C Zﬁ[ 7’@5 %ZZ'S’ have o opedled Kos to the status of being one of

the fastest g? owing specialty phar macentical companies in the U S.

- inhalation devices. We have leveraged these capabilities by developing several innovative proprietary formulations
in the respiratory area and MDI devices. To date, on the device side, our focus is on a breath-actuated inhaler
and spacer-less MDI device that generates low plume force.

As referencéd earlier, we are iinvestigating an inhaled insulin that hasw‘successfully completed phase I and phase ITa
~ studies in support of the product’s safety and efficacy. In a phase I human study, the formulation demonstrated a
relative bioavailability of up to 23%. The results of a phase Ila trial showed that the formulation is comparable to
the market-leading inj jectable insulin in controlling blood glucose levels, while also reducing blood lipids such as
LDL-C and. trlglycerldes As mentioned, we are in active discussions with several pharmaceutical companies with
a view of co-development of this asset for the treatment of type 2 diabetes.
We are also investigéti_ng new applications for solid-dose delivery technology with the goal of developing gastric
retention delivery systems for pharmaceutical products. The use of these superporous hydrogels may help facilitate
the delivery of drugs that are présently poorly absorbed in the upper gastrointestinal (GI) tract and could include
many potential drug candidates resulﬁng in improved dosing regimens. We have demonstrated proof of concept
in animals and are conducting further phase II studies in humans. In 2004, we advanced this concept by in- hcensmg
this technoiogy for potentxal utlhty as a diet application. )

~ The Company also contiriued to research the effectiveness of our existing drugs in combination with others by
sponsoring and/or initiating many phase IV studies that will generate results during the next few years. One of
these is a 300-person clinical study called COMPELL that will evaluate Niaspan in combination with Lipitor®,
super statins and other combination products. The results are expected in the second half of 2005.

On the intellectual property front, we secured two new pharmacokinetic patents for Niaspan, bringing the total
issued patents to six, thus bolstering our patent portfolio. In that vein, we are still involved in a patent litigation
dispute with Barr and currently are scheduled to go to trial in February 2006.

Lastly, several favorable studies related to our cholesterol franchise were pubhshed during the vear, including
20 Journal articles. The studies included:

« ARBITER 2 was published in the November 2004 issue of Circulation. This study showed that Niaspan, when
added to a-background of statin therapy in patients with normal LDL-C levels and low HDL-C levels slowed -

- disease progression 68% more than statin monotherapy as measured by a validated surrogate marker of plaque
build-up in the carotid artery. Furthermore, the addition of Niaspan to background statin therapy resulted in a
positive trend that showed a 60% reduction of coronary evénts compared to a statin alone: Patients who were
treated with statin therapy alone over the course of the year continued to produce more plaque, the hard substance -
that forms on arterial walls and increases heart disease risk. Researchers attributed the reduction in event rate
and slowing of atherosclerosis in the Niaspan/statin group to the significant changes in HDL-C and triglyceride

Kos’ Prescription for Success 13
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=or: Investment in People for. Competitive Advantage:

¢

N Tbe pmxzmz zmd commztment of r/:re OZM Z 000 K@S e Wp[@y(e (eS is evzdenced by t/Je fmt tbﬂt we lyﬁve

Investment in. People for Compet]tlve Advantage ‘ -
CA part ‘of Kos™ prescription Sor success is recognlzmg the. value of each person in the orgamzauon as.a key ingre- .
~'dient to the success of the Company Our ach1evements and growth in the past and certamly in 2004:would not
_-be possrble without the outstanding efforts of cur- dedicated employees at every level of the organization. The -
‘employee base has how passed a significant m1lestone marker i in that we currently have over 1,000 talented and

, tmnow7 5zgmjzczzntl)/ be/o w zndum ¥ avemge

-

_ levels experleneed by those patlents ARBITER 2 is the f1rst study to demonstrate the mcremental mdependent ’

- effect of adding an HDL C ralsmg therapy to a'statin in slowmg the progression of atheroscleroms compared -
" with a statin-alone. - ‘ ’ ' Co Cl

" o The ANTHEM study, presented at the 64th ‘Annual Sc1ent1f1c Sessrons of the Amerrcan Drabetes Assoc1at1on

in June 2004 demonstrated the effectiveness of Advicor (1000 mg/40 mg and 1500 mg/40 mg) versus fenoflbrate .
(200 mg) on several blsod lrp1d levels in patients with type 2 diabetes.

- @ Data presented at the ‘Annual Séientific Sessmns of the Amerlcan College of Cardlology in March 2004 found

Advicor to be an éffective ‘option for treatmg cholesterol drsorders commonly associated with metabolic syndrome.
The f1nd1ngs showed no differences in the change in blood glucose levels between ‘patients with metabolic

‘ "«syndrome tréated with Advzcor for one year and patients. without metabolic syndrome who underwent the same

treatment. Nearly one quarter of adults in the U.S. suffer from this illness, which mcludes a group of health risk
- factors that put people ata greater rlsk for heart dlsease stroke and dlabetes ' S

-

- ‘hard—workmg mdrvrduals who demoéristrate a passion for-the organrzatron and our products. If one strength sets

Kos apart from other compames, it-is the’ fact that our people are bound by 2 common vision, a core set of values
and the work ethic necessary to-drive peak performance and our continued success: Tl’]]S level of commrtment s
evrdenced by the fact that we only have ‘a 13 5 % turnover. rate Wl’llCh is among the lowest in the 1ndustry

In 2004 we undertook an 1mportant strategrc step to maintain our solid employee base and set the stagé for

: contmued growth. We relocated our ¢corporate headquarters’ from Miami, Florida to Cranbury, New Jersey.
' While we still have a substantlal employee base in Weston and Hollywood, Florida; Rale1gh North Carolma,

- “and Edison, New Jersey; we felt that at this i 1mportant point in‘the Company’s growth, it is appropriate to have

-recruit and retain the best pharmaceutlcal talent in the natlon

‘headquarters located more centrally to the * pharma hub” of the Unrted States. The move not only afforded us .

) the ability to bring many remote departments together under one roof but well positions us to continue to

~

" In connect1on wrth our investment and commitment in people we want to thank Chr1st0pher P K1r1tsy, Executive
- Viee: Pre51dent Corporate Development and Chief Financial Officer, for his consistent and significant contributions
toKos durrng his ten years of service. ‘Chris will be departmg Kos in 2005, to oversee Triad, a company in which
Kos has recently made ah equity 1nvestment and with whom we currently have a sponsored research arrangement
-~ We recognizé Chris for helping; to take-Kos, from a development stage company to a highly profltable fully

mtegrated spec1alty pharmaceuncal company
'y

1
y
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We continue our active clinical studies and programs, with three NDAs in

1€ COVering

development, as well as a number of other promising products in our pi

the cardiovascular, respiratory and metabolic disease categories.
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infrastructuve, pipeline, strategy nnd onr wonderful people.

Filling Our Prescmpmon for Continued Success and Growch .
As a result of our collective efforts, we enter 2005 in our strongest posmon ever. We operate in a rapidly growmg
marketplace where there are still critical areas of unmet need and opportunities for significant growth. The
demand for our products is robust and we have great confidence in our infrastructure, pipeline, strategy and our

" wonderful people. Our balance sheet has never been stronger, which affords us the financial flexibility and muscle

- to pursue those initiatives and goals. We will continue to build on the solid foundation we have laid by making-
sound business decmons that will continue to propel the Company forward and to: '

» market our ex1st1ng products aggresswely to drive sales growth

* commercialize new products and expand our pipeline

¢ acquire promising new products and forge beneficial in-licensing agreements

- meet our recruitment targets for clinical programs .

e maintain our unique people-centric culture while motivating and rewardmg employees

* ensure customer-first orientation in all that is done throughout the Company

+ drive rapid and sustalnable financial growth with'a goal of reachmfr $1 bllllon in sales by the end of 2007

Kos’ status as oneiof"the fastest growing specialty pharmaceutical companies in the United States is a product of
many ingredients—the engagement and insight of our leadership teams and our Board of Directors, the persever-
ance and dedication of our employees, the loyalty of our customers and the support of our valued shareholders.
Together, these factors comprlse the basis of Kos’ prescrzptzon for success and position the Company to excel in
the future by continuing in pioneering medicines for a better life. -

Daniel M. Bell :Adriany Adams
Chairman of the Board \ ‘President and Chief Executive Officer

Kos’ Prescription for Success 17



‘Ko‘s: R&D Product Pipeline B S o :

o
s !

Sohd Dose Product Plpehne L

S . . R o - SNDA/NDA
Product o ’ Indlcanon -+ Pre-Clinical o Phase | Phase ! Phase i Timing '
'KS01016 v T S
.. Niaspan Modmed Formu’anon .. Lipid Altering . I 1H 05
Ks01022 - o T L ,

Advicor 1000 mg/AD mg . - Lipid Altering: - S - +2H0B
KS01019" o e L : o
Nmspan/smvastatin' . Lipid Altering ~ . . .. o ] . 2H 08
KSD1018 - . LT el L
Niaspahi/lovastatin. - : PAD - O s - ' 2H 08
KSowo17 - . . . ‘ T T g
" Undisclosed |~ - . - Cardiometabolic S . 2010
KD9gao7 . - R ' '
GR/Drug Detivery X ‘Various .« v Lo ; TBD .
" . KD01026 - S . '
GR Device - . - Anti-bbesity | . O TBD .
KHO1800 .~ = s
Undisclosed . . a HDL-Modulfatpr o o TBD
KHO1801 " . N ; . ‘ ]
EnzymeInhibitors _ L rHDL‘Modulator : 5 . : TBD
KHO1802 - - S I : L
_--. Niacin Analogs : - HDL Modulator ‘ S ;8D .
- KH01503 . ' . e . . : ’
‘Ap'o Almimeric ~ - ' HOL Modu!ator ‘ . ' i TBD
Inhalamon Product Plpehne Coe R
e : ! Projected
Product - ; : Inchcatlon . Pre-Clinical © Phase! ~ ° ° Phasell Phase Ii SNDA/NDA
- K103216 T PO : - TR
Azmacort HFA (EDC) R - Asth‘rna R e CE y . 12H07.
K102212 - . DR ey P
Insulin (BAI/VNA/I:DC) o Diabetes . . . i e I TBD -
K103218 ‘ R T R
. Undisclosed *- T 0, _ Endometriosis -1 . b ‘ . 20M
K103219. - N ‘ '
. ICS/LABA Combo. . ; Asthma/c_DPD ‘ . C 201
T K104204 L. 1 ' o
ICS (Aero Dewce) ) Asthma/Pedlatnc ' i : : 1201
" Kos Device References: IEDC)EIectmmc Dose Counter; - S - ) C S
[VNA)Vortex Nozzie Actuator; (BAI)Breath Actudted Inhaler ' ! -
Dehvery Demcc Pxpelme : L 7 : Product Validation -
. . *,° " Engineering . Characterization & Early Regulatory
.Product ' . Co T Development (Device with Drug) Clinical Support Phase lll Support * Review
KD03413" ' U SR NUTUC
Vortex Nozzlg AGtuator. (VNA) e . . C e st o . 18D.
KD03403 . . .- - T e e e R -
Electronic Dose Counter (EDC) . ST A 2407 4

’ KD03402 . : R ‘ L .
Breath Actuated Inhaler (BAI). - g RN ; . TBD
KDO3418 " " : R - o
Nasal DellveryPlatform(NDD) T Do v 1TBD
KD03417 - R } ; i T
DryPowder InhalerP\atform(PPI) R . TBD,

< KD03413 ., C — o ‘ R
Aqusous Inhaler Platform (PLI) L 0 TBD-

— T — - -
'Niaspan and- Adwmr are concramd)cared m\pat)ems wnh aknown hvpersenmn ity to theu‘ components attive liver or peptic ulcer dlscase unexplamed per51s-
- tent liver enzyme elevation, or-artérial bleeding. Advicor should not be taken by pregnant or nursing women. These products should be prescribed with caution

“'in'patients who drink subscantial amounts of alcohol and/or have a past hlstory of liver disease. Liver function tests should be monitored. periodically. Niaspan.

or Advicor should not be substituted directly for equal-doses'of immediate-release niacih. Cases of severe toxicity, including fulminant hepatic necrosis have
occurred in patients who have substituted sustained release (modified-release, timed- reléase) niacin products for immediate-release niacin at equivalent doses.
Comblnauon therapy with niacin ard a statin may increase’the risk of myopathy and a serious but rare condition referred to as rhabdomyoly51s The most’com-

‘ mon adverse event with I\rasytzﬂ and Aduvicor is flushing of the skin. Other.commonly reported adverse events include headache, abdominal | pain, diarrhea, .
dvspepsia; nausea, vomiting, itching and rash. Dlabenc panents may experlence a dose related rise in fasting blood sugar with these products -

Azmacort is an inhaled corticosteroid. A"macart is \IOT a bronchodllator and should not be used to.treat acute-or sudden asthma atracks. CADTION Adrenal
msufﬁmency may occur when :ransferrmg pauents frorn s;srem:c steronds In clinical rr;a]s, the most commenly reported adverse events were smusms, pharyn—
| gits, and headnche . . . . . .-
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Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The following Selected Consolidated Financial Data of the Company for the five years ended December 31, 2004, should
be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” -

and the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes thereto.

Kos’ Prescription for Success

~ Year Ended December 31,
(in t/:;ousands, except share data) 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Statement of Operations: '
Net sales® $495,545 $293,907 $172,693 § 84227 $§ 35,145
Licensing revenue 1,559 — — 7,220 5,029
Total revenue 497,104 293,907 172,693 91,447 60,174
‘ Cost of sales 36,926 20,038 15,362 7,646 5,932
460,178 273,869 157,331 83,801 54,242
Operating expenses: ’
Research and development® 111,064 52,203 43,981 30,974 26,459
Selling, general and administrative 235,718 156,469 130,145 83,587 56,831
Total operating expenses® 346,782 208,672 174,126 114,561 83,290
Income (loss) from operations 113,396 - 65,197 (16,795) (30,760) (29,048)
Other expense (income): :
‘Interest income, -net (2,388) (614) (160) (242) C(323)
Interest expense, related parties - 1,209 3,316 4,038 6,051 6,524
Interest expense, other 8 4 7 30 36
Other expense (income)® (3,576) 198 136 (38,985) ¢d4))
"Total other expense (income) (4,747) 2,904 4,021 (33,146) 6,217
Income (loss) before prov'ision for income taxes® 118,143 62,293 (20,816) 2,386 (35,265)
Provision for/(Benefit from) income taxes (24,176) 2,879 — — —
Net income (loss) $142,319 $ 59414 $ (20816) $ 2,386 $ (35,265)
(tontinued)
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“Year Ended December 31,

2004

(in thousands, e;ccept}bafe data) 2003 2002 - 2001 2000
Earnings (loss) per share(4) ‘ o e ' » » ,
Basic -$.376 [ § 271 $ (01 § 012 (1.8%)
Diluted - 313 1S3 (1.01) - 010 (1.84)
Weighted average Common- Stock and Common~ o '
Stock equivalents used in computmg earmngs
(loss) per share® " Coe : , R S
Basic 1| 37,897,597 | 21,913,928 20,582,205 20,221,089 19,202,877
Diluted. 45,835,563 | 41,033,325 .-20,582,205 = 22,798,632 19,202,877
‘ . . . December 31, .
(in thousands) 2004 + 2003 2002 2001. . 2000
Balance Sheet: : N 7 ‘ o S N
Cash and marketable securities - . $258,703 | '$259958 $ 19572 § 45319 $ 6,125
Working capital (def1c1t) 245,103 '248,059 (54,644) 27,160 . (1,911)
Total assets 58’6,92,6 1 335,521 69,441 82,941 29,648
Total long-term debt® \ 209 |7 30,0000 34,025 95082 - 72,000
Accumulated deficit L (91,628) | (233’947) (293361) © (272,545) . (274,931
Shareholders’ equity (deficit) 35,142 | 239,627 (74709) (58439 (65,090)

(1) For 2003, mcludes the effect of an $11.1 million revenue benefit and $99 million beneflt to income before proviston for income taxes resulting from a change in

accounting estimate. See Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated: Fmanczal Statements for information concerning this change in accounting estimate.

(2) For 2004, includes the effect of a oné-time, $38 'million in: process R&D write-off associated with the acquisition &f the Azmacort product.
(3) For 2001, includes the effect of 4 $45 million settlement received from Bristol-Myers Squibb Company, of which $6 million was recorded as-reimbursement of
operating expenses and $39 million as other income. For 2004 includes the effect of'a $6 million settlement received from Andrx, of w! shich 82 m1lhon was

recorded as reimbursement of operating expenses and $4 million as other income. |
(4) See Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for: mformatmn concerning the computation of earnings (loss) per share.
" (5) For 2004,-excludes-$19 million of debt due to Michael Jaharis, Chairman Emeritus of the Company’s Board of Directors and its principal shareholder, as such
debt matures on June ‘30, 2005. For 2002, excludes $50 mill'ion of; debe due to Michael Jaharis, as such debt marured on December 31, 2003.

Kos’ Prescription. for Success
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Management’s Discussion and Anélysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations

Executive Overview
Kos is a fully-integrated specialty pharmaceumcal com-
pany engaged in the development and commercialization -
of proprietary prescription products for the treatment of
chronic cardiovascular, metabolic and respiratory diseases.
Kos manufactures its lead products, Niaspan® and Advicor®,
and currently markets them directly through its own spe-
cialty sales force and co-promotion partner in the U.S.
and through its commercialization partner and license
. arrangements outside of the U.S., Canada and Japan.

- On March 8, 2004, the Company announced that it -
had entered into a product acquisition agreement with
Aventis Pharmaceuticals Holdings Inc. (the “Azmacort
Acquisition Agreement”) and a finished product supply
agreement (the “Azmacort Supply Agreement” and together
with the Azmacort Acquisition Agreement, the “Aventis
Agreements”) with Aventis Pharmaceuticals Inc. {col-
lectively with Aventis Pharmaceuticals Holdings Inc.,
“Aventis”) to acquire global rights to the Azmacors® .
(triamcinolone acetonide) inhalation aerosol franchise.
The transaction was completed on March 31, 2004.
Accordingly, Kos began recording revenue for all sales
related to the Azmacort product beginning April 1, 2004.
The Company’s cardiovascular and metabolic products
under development consist of controlled-release, oral solid
dosage formulations, and the Company’s respiratory and
metabolic products under development consist of aero-
solized inhalation formulations to be used primarily with
Kos’ proprietary inhalation devices.

The Company’s current core business strategy is based
upon developing drugs that are reformulations of existing
approved prescription pharmaceutical products, but which
offer certain safety or patient compliance advantages com-
pared with existing formulations of such products.

The principal elements of Kos’ current business strategy
are as follows: k

(i) develop or acquire products with unrealized com-
mercial potential where safety or patient compliance may
be improved or where greater utilization of a product
could be attained through increasing the awareness of
the product’s features and benefits;

(i1) focus on the large, rapidly growing cardiovascular,
metabolic and respiratory markets, which include many
chronic diseases requiring long-term therapy;

(ii1) develop proprietary formulations of currently
approved pharmaceutical compounds;

(iv) manage internally the clinical development of
its products;

(v) manufacture its products internally, or where neces-
sary or prudent, using a contract manufacturer;

(vi) market its products directly through the Company’s
sales forces, which Kos may supplement with a contract
sales organization or other partners and through co-
promotion and other strategic alliances to extend the
marketing reach of the Company to new and existing
patients; and

(vii) leverage its core competencies through corporate
and academic alliances.

In measuring the Company’s results of operations,
management’s primary focus is on revenue growth of the
Niaspan, Advicor and Azmacort products, as well as net
income growth. Net sales of the Company’s Niaspan and
Advicor products increased to $427.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2004, from $293.9 million for the
same period in 2003. This 45.4% increase in Niaspan and
Advicor revenue was primarily attributable to increases
in unit volurne and prices for the Company’s products
during the 2004 period, partially offset by the impactof a
change in product return estimates (as described below in
this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations”) in the first quarter
of 2003. As mentioned above, the Company began record-
ing Azmacort revenue on April 1, 2004. Azmacort revenue -
through December 31, 2004 totaled $68.3 million. Net
income for the year ended December 31, 2004, was $142.3
million compared to net income of $59.4 million for the
same period in 2003. The increase, in part, was also
attributable to a net benefit from income taxes of $24.2
million, principally related to the reversal of the majority
of the Company’s deferred tax asset valuation allowance
and to the deferred income tax benefit associated with a

- $38.0 million charge related to the Aventis transaction, as

more fully described below. The increase in net income
was partially offset by the write-off, as a research and
development expense, of approximately $38.0 million for
the value of in-process research and development associ-
ated with the assets acquired from Aventis, as more fully
described below.

Kos’ Prescription for Success 21
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and Results of Operatlons (contmued)

Because Kos’ current core business strategy is mostly
dependent on the reformulation of existing cornpounds

or the development or acquisition of products with unre- .

alized market potential, the Company’s business could be
subject to significant competitive pressures by other prod-
ucts and therapies in the rapidly growing markets for
cardiovascular, metabolic and respiratory treatments. As
such, Kos’ critical success factors include its ablllty to.
continue to increase the amount of revenue generated by

the Niaspan, Advicor and Azmacort products and its ability -

to successfully. develop and/or acquire new products or’
drugs. The Company’s ability to continue to increase
revenue is primarily dependent on its ability to increase
prescriptions for its-marketed products, and to maintain a
competitive product pricing and differentiation strategy. .

The Company’s ability to complete new. drug and product .

- acquisitions on favorable terms-will be a critical factor
in the Company’s ability to increase revenues in future
-periods. Protection of the Company’s intellectual prop-
erty. rtghts will also be critical to the Company’s success
in future periods, 1nclud1ng its ability to ‘obtain and r main-
tain.patents, enforce those patents, preserve trade secrets
and operate without infringing the proprletary rlghts of
third parties. :

" General
A predecessor corporation to the Company was formed
in July 1988 under the name of Kos Pharmaceut1cals, -
Inc. principally to conduct research and development on

- new-formulations of ex1>t1ng prescription pharmaceutlcal
products. In June 1993, Aeropharm Technology, Inc,,
now Aeropharm Technology, LLC (“Aeropharrn”), a then
majority-owned subsidiary of the Company, was formed -

to conduct research and development activities on aerosol-

ized products, dispensed in metered dose inhalers, for
the treatment of respiratory diseases. During June 1996,
this predecessor corporation acquired the outstandlng
minority interest in Aeropharm; changed its name to Kos
Holdinigs, Inc. (“Holdings”); established the Company -
asa wholly-owned subs1dlary under the name ‘of Kos'
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.; and, effectiveras of June 30, 1996,
transferred all of its existing assets, liabilities and intel-
lectual property, other than certain net operatlng loss.
carryforwards to the Company. Accordrngly, all refer-
ences in this Annual Report to-the Company’s busmess ‘
include the busrness and operatlons of Holdings untxl
June 30, 1996 ’

22 Kos’ Prescription for Success

" On March 12, 1997, the Company completed an initial

" public offering (“IPO”) of its Common Stock. From i incep-
tion through the IPO, the Company had not recorded
_‘any significant revenues; and the Company had funded its

operations exclusively through equity contr1but10ns and

" loans from its majority shareholder. Through December

31, 2004, the Company had accumulated a net deficit from'

- operatlons of approximately $91.6.million. In connection,
- with the transfer of operations from Holdings to the

Company on June 30, 1996, net operating loss.carry-
forwards amounting to approximately $51.0 miillion

-and related tax benefits were retained by Holdings and -
ot transferred to the Company. As of December 31,
.. 2004, the Company had approxrmately $165:4 million
" of net operating loss carryforwards (“NOLS”) and $4.7.
‘ 'mrlllon of tax credits.

On July 28, 1997, Kos received clearance from the
Food and Drug Administration (“FDA?) to market the

tNm.vpan product for the treatment of mixed lipid disorders.

Niaspan is the only once-a-day prescription. formulanon of

" .a niacin product approved by the FDA for the treatment of
-.mixed llpld disorders. The Company and its co- promotron
* partner, Takeda Pharmaceuticals North America, Inc.-
(“Takeda”), currently market Nizspan in the United States
" directly to physicians who specialize in treatinig patients

with coronary heart disease and/or who are among the
leading prescribers of lipid- alter1ng medications.
On December 17, 2001, Kos received clearance from

‘ the FDA to market the Adt)icar product (extended-release

niacin/lovastatin tablets). The approval of the Advicor

product marked the first time that the FDA has approved
a combination product for the safe and efficacicus treat-
ment of cholesterol disorders. The Company began detail- |

* ing the Advicor product to.physicians on January 28, 2002.

As with Niaspan, Kos and Takeda market Advicor directly
to phy51c1ans who specialize in treating patients with cor-
ondry heart disease and/or who are among the leadmg
prescribers of lipid-altering medications. -

On March 31, 2004, the Company completed the acqui-
sition of the Azmacort product from Aventis. The Azmacort
product is an inhaled corticosteroid that alleviates inflam-

' mation in the lungs and isused'as prophylactic therapy for

" the maintenance treatment of asthma. Under the terms of
.- the Aventis Agreements, Kos paid Aventis approximately
" $206.1 million in cash and has agreed.to pay a royalty on -

futuresales of a hydrofluoroalkane (“HFA”) version of the

' produ‘ct in development. Under the terms of the Azmacort’




Supply Agreement, Aventis has agreed to supply finished
product to Kos for a period of five years from the date of
the Azmacort acquisition. The purchase price allocation
resulted in the recording of intangible assets of $154.4
million for developed and core technology value, $6.7 mil-
lion for the value of certain other intangibles, $7.0 million
for the value of inventory and $38.0 million for the value

of in-process research and development. The $38.0-million

value assigned to in-process research and development of
the acquired assets was recorded as a research and devel-
opment expense in the accompanying Consolidated State-
ments of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2004
(the “In-process R&D Write-off”). The In-process R&D
Write-off resulted in the Company also recording a $14.4
million deferred tax benefit to account for the difference
between the book and tax basis of accounting for this
write-off. The remaining intangible assets are being
amortized over their estimated lives, ranging from five
to 22 years. The Company began detailing the Azmacort
product in August 2004 and currently markets the
Azmacort product in the United States directly to spe-
cialist physicians, such as pulmonologists and allergists.
The In-process R&D Write-off was determined by
identifying the specific in-process.research and devel-
opment projects that would be continued and for which
(a) technological feasibility has not been established as of
the acquisition date, (b) there was no alternative future -
use and (¢) the fair value was estimable with reasonable
reliability.

The acquired in-process research and development rep-

resents a single project, the HFA formulation of Azmacort.
The HFA formulation of Azmacort does not use a chloro-
fluorocarbon (“CFC”)-based propellant and, conse-

quently, does not deplete the Ozone Layer. The Montreal

Protocol on Substances that Deplete the Ozone Layer
{the “Protocol”) is an international treaty under which
the production and consumption. of ozone-depleting
substances is being phased out worldwide. Under the -
Protocol, codified by the U.S. Congress into law in Title
VI of the Clean Air Act, the production of CFCs in the
U.S. was banned as of January 1, 1996, unless a specific
exemnption is approved annually by the international par-
ties to the Protocol. In order to comply with the Clean
Air Act and the Protocol, the U.S. will eventually need
“to phase out CFC-propelled metered dose inhalers.

The Azmacort HFA formulation had not achieved tech-
nological feasibility as of the transaction date. Among the
technological matters to be resolved are: manufacturing
controls and evidence of dose proportionality between the
75pg and 225pg formulations.

The Company believes it may have to invest up to
$13.5 million during the 2005-2008 period to achieve
technological feasibility of the Az#macort HFA formula-
tion. If the technological and regulatory challenges are
overcome, sales of the Azmacort HFA formulation could

begin as early as 2009.

The fair value of all of the in-process research and devel-
opment was determined using the “income approach”.
This method starts with a forecast of all of the expected
future net cash flows associated with the in-process tech-
nology. These cash flows are then adjusted to present value
by applying an appropriate discount rate that reflects the
risk factors associated with the cash flow streams, some
of which are more certain than others. The risk-adjusted
discount rate utilized in calculating the fair value of the
Azmacort HFA formulation was 36%.

Recent Developments
The Company entered into a sponsored research agree-
ment (the “Sponsored Research Agreement”) and related

. license agreement (the “License Agreement”), each dated

November 8, 2004, with Triad Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

. (“Triad”), a privately-held drug discovery and design

pharmaceutical company focused on developing molecules
for a variety of diseases, including orally active therapies
for diabetes, cancer and cholesterol disorders and now
controlled by a limited partnership (the “Triad Limited
Partnership”) formed by the wife of Michael Jaharis, the
Company’s founder, principal shareholder and Chairman
Emeritus of the Company’s Board of Directors. At the
time the agreements were executed, Mr. Jaharis directly
controlled Triad. Under the Sponsored Research Agree-
ment, Triad has agreed to perform research relating to
‘the design and synthesis of molecules to increase HDL
cholesterol (the “Field”). The Sponsored Research Agree-
ment has a two-year term ending September 30, 2005,
subject to extension, and provides for total payments by
the Company during the initial two-year term of $1.5
million. Triad commenced the sponsored research in
2003 in anticipation of the execution of the definitive

Kos’ Prescription for Success
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agreements The Company paid $187, 500 to Trlad in 2003
and $937 500 in 2004 in connection with the Sponsored
Research Agreement “Under the License Agreement, Triad
granted to the Company the right to.obtain exclusive,
worldwide, royalty-bearing rights.to all 1nteUectual prop-
_erty in the Field developed during the term of the Spon-
sored Research Agreement that ultimately is embodied in
a patent claim, and non-exclusive rights.to-all other intel-
lectual property in the Field developed durmg the term'"
of the Sponsored Research Agreement (e.g., methods, -
processes, trade secrets and technical data) that is not
otherwise the subject of, or embodied in; a patent claim.
During the term of; the Sponsored Research Agreement
- Triad may not use the non-exclusive intellectual property
in the Field for commercial purposes. Followmg térmi-
nation of the Sponsored Research Agreement Triad will

pay to the Company royalties on income earned by Triad »

from thé commercialization of any such non-exclusive -
intellectual property within the Field. Trlad conducts the
: sponsored research pursuant to its sponsored research and
license agreements with Tufts University. -

On February 1, 2005, the Company paid $4:0 mrlhon .

of a proposed aggregate $8.0 million investment in Trlad
through the purchase of shares of a new series of convert
ible preferred stock of Triad (the “Series F Preferred -
Stock”). Subject to the satisfaction of certain conditio'ns,

including. Trlad achieving certain agreed-upon milestones -

relating to its research and development activities by .
August 1, 2006, the Company will purchase an additional

$4.0 mllhon of Series F Preferred Stock: The investment is

partof a $16. 0 million round of financing for Triad, with
the remaining $8.0 million being provided by the Triad

- Limited Partnership under similar terms and conditions -
as the Company’s investment. Assummg consummation of
the second $4.0 million investment, the Company would

- own approximately 27% and the Triad Limited Partnership .

would own or have the right to vote approximately:48% of
the outstanding common stock of Triad on a fully diluted
basis. Under the agreements related to the investment,
the Company is entitled:to designate three persons, and
the Triad Limited Partnership is entitled to de51gnate :
seven persons, to Triad’s 13-member Board of Directors..

Adrian Adams, the President and Chief Executive Officer R

of the Company, has been appointed by the Company
to the Triad Board of Directors and has been elected by
the directors of Triad as Chairman. The Company w111
appoint two additional persons to the Triad Board ata -
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later date. Michael Jaharis, Steven Jaharis and Kevin T.

Ferro, directors of Kos, have been appointed by the Triad

Limited Partnership to the Triad Board of Directors.
In-connection with the closing of the investment in

Triad on February 1, 2005, Christopher P. Kiritsy, Kos’
Executive Vice President, Corporate Development and
. " CFO, notified the Company that he will be résigning

from the Company, after his successor as CFO is found,
which is expected to occur during the second quarter of
2005, and has accepted the position of President and Chief

_ Executive Officer of Triad. Additionally, pursuant to pre-

existing contractual arrangements, Mr. Kiritsy acquired

. directly from Mrs. Jaharis approximately 1% of the out-
- standing Triad stock on an “as converted” basis, repre-

senting all-of her remaining ownership interest in Triad.
Mr. Kiritsy has also received stock options-to purchase

© 243,600 shares of Triad common stock under the Triad
-~ stock option plan. The Triad common stock currently

owned by Mr. Kiritsy and the Triad common stock issu-
able upon exercise of stock options granted to‘Mr. Kiritsy

.are subject to voting agreements in favor of the Triad
Limited Partnership and Triad, respectively.

" Results of Operations.

Critical Accounting Policies: The Cornpany S signifieant

accounting policies are described in Note 2 to the Conisol- -
 idated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report.
" The Company-believes that its most critical accounting -
“policies include revenue recognition, the estimation of

allowances principally related to product returns and’
discounts, managed care rebates, chargebacks-and reimi-

- bursements relating to Medicaid and Medicare, account-

" ing-for income taxes and management’s estimate of the

- useful lives. and realizability of recorded intangible assets.
The Company records accrual estimates for sales returns

and allowances mostly based on historical experience.The

-calculation of rebates and chargebacks is based on existing

contractual arrangements with indirect customers (such
as managed care providers, pharmacy benefit admmlstra-

tors and government units) and on Kos’ analysis of esti-’
" mated product inventory levels in its distribution channel,

which is derived through the use of certain inputs. The
Company believes that its estimation of sales allowances
related to product- returns and discounts, managed care
rebates, chargebacks and reimbursements associated with

vMedlca1d and Medicare represent the best estimates of

those amounts, and are based on assumptions whrch the

_Company believes represent the most likely outcomes.



’

The most pertinent inputs used in the estimation of
the Company sales allowances and accruals, and product
inventory levels in its distribution channel, include pre-
scription data (derived from a third-party publication),
consumer price index (derived from a third-party publi-
cation), product best price (derived from the Company’s
contractual arrangements) and averagé manufacturer
price (“AMP”) (computational in nature using historical
data). Of these inputs, prescription data and AMP require

significant estimation. The Company believes that vari-
ances between estimates and actual results of prescription
data and AMP may reasonably vary between +/- 5% and
+/— 5%, respectively. The following table reflects the
potential impact to revenue for the year ended December
31, 2004, based upon various combinations of these rea-
sonably likely outcomes in prescription data and AMP
estimates (positive dollar amounts represent potential
decreases in revenue; negative dollar amounts represent
potential increases in revenue):

Impact on Niaspan, Advicor and Azmacort Revenue

Sensitivity Analysis of Possible Variations in Prescrlptlon and AMP Inputs

(in millions, except % variance)

Prescription Variance

(5%) (3%) (1%) 0% 1% 3% 5%
(5%) $(1.7) $(1.8) $(1.8) $(1.9) $(1.9) $(2.0) $(2:0)
g (3%) (1.1) (1.1) (1.2) 1.2 1.2) (1.3) (1.4
£ (1%) 0.3) (0.4) 0.4) - (0.4 0.5) (0.5) (0.6)
S 0% 0.1 — — — 0.1) 0.1) 0.2)
E 1% 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2
Z 3% 1.2 1.2 Tl 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0
5% 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7

The Company’s management periodically reviews the
policies and estimates discussed above, the effect of which
is reflected as a component of net.income in the period
in which a change is known. Other than the changes
described below associated with the Company’s estimate
of its product return exposure during the first quarter of
2003, and the adjustment to the deferred tax asset valua-
tion allowance as a result of the change in judgment about
the realizability of such asset, such changes to these esti-
mates have not been material to the Company’s results of
operations during the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002. ‘

The Company periodically evaluates the volume of its
Niaspan, Advicor and Azmacort products that are in cus-
tomer inventories or elsewhere in the distribution channel
to determine whether increased risk of product returns
exists. For the period from the introduction of its inter-
nally-developed products through December 31, 2002,
Kos’ return risk expectations were consistently based on
its limited product return experience given the early stage
nature of its products and of the Company. Accordingly,
Kos established a specific return risk estimate based on
estimated inventory levels in the distribution channel that

was used to determine the amount of revenue that could
be recorded during a given period. During the quarter.
ended March 31, 2003, as a result of the significant history
of minimal returns for the Niaspan and Advicor products
since their introduction, Kos revised its return risk esti-
mates to reflect the historically low product return pat--
terns. This change in accounting estimate resulted in the
Company recognizing as revenue all product shipments
made during the quarter ended March 31, 2003, as well
as $11.1 million of prior period product shipments not.
recognized as revenue because of Kos’ previous product
return risk exposure estimates. The impact of this change
in estimate increased the Company’s reported revenues,
net income, and basic and diluted earnings per share by
$11.1 million, $9.9 million, and $0.45 per share and $0.24
per share, respectively, for the year ended December 31,
2003. The Company will continue to monitor wholesaler
inventory levels, and, if the Company’s product return
risk exceeds acceptable levels, the Company may be
required to not recognize the revenue and related costs
associated with the excess inventory until such return
risk is mitigated.
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. The Company follows Statement of Fmancral Account—
ing Standards (“SFAS”) No. 109, “Accountlng for. Income

Taxes” (“SFAS 109”), which requires, among other things, . _
. income and $152.9 million of state NOLs available to off-
. set future state taxable i income. In addition, the Company
had $4.7 million of other tax credits to offset future fed-
‘eral income tax. If Kos is unable to generate sufficient
+“future taxable income through operating results, or if its

recognition of future tax benefits and liabilities measured
at enacted tax rates attributable to temporary differences *

between financial statement and income tax bases of assets”
and liabilities and to ‘tax NOLs to the extent that reahza-

tion of said benefits is more likely than not.

Through December 31, 2003, the Company had estab- :

lished a valuation allowance against its net deferred tax -
assets because there was not sufficient evidence to con- . -
clude that the Company would “more likely than not”

realize all or a portion of such assets. Management cur- .

rently believes, based on the Company’s historical: profit--
ability and on its expected future profitability, that the

Company will generate sufficient taxable income to real- -

ize its deferred tax assets prior to the.expiration of any
NOLSs and, therefore, that the Company will “more hkely
than not” realize most of its deferred tax assets. .
Asof December 31, 2004, the Company had deferred
tax assets of approximately $58.7 million and a remammg
~ valuation allowance of approx1mately $4.2 m11110n (prin-
cipally related-to certain state NOLs which ‘may not be .
realized by the Company);” ‘which resulted in net deferred

tax assets of approximately $54.5 million. Under SFAS 109, -

the valuation allowance should be adj usted when a change
in c1rcumstances causes a change in udgment about the.
realizabilty of deferred tax assets. The portion of the valu-
ation allowance related to NOLs expected to be autilized
1o offset estimated * ordmary income in the current year
is included in the computation.of the estimated-annual -
effective tax rate. The portion of the valuation allowance"

relatéd to other deferred tax assets, including riet operatmg :

losses expected to be utilized to offset ordmary income

in future years, is reversed as of the date of the change.in .

circumstances. Accordingly, the benefit from income taxes

in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Starements‘,

of Operations for the year ended December 31,2004,
includes the reversal of $71.2° million of valuatlon allow-
ance, of which $67.3 million représents the portion'.
reversed through the effective tax rate for the period and
$3.9 million relates to the reversal of valuation allowance -
on defefred tax assets expected to bé realized through
ordmary income in future years: The benefit for income -
taxes also includes a $14.4 million deferred benefit. related
* to the In- -process R&D Write- off.
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" Included in'the Company’s $54.5 million of net deferred .

tax assets as of December 31, 2004, were $12.5 million of
federal NOLs available to offset future federal taxable

estimates about future profitability charige significantly,

~ increases or decreases to the valuation allowance will be
. requ1red through ad)ustments to income. '

" Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 The Companv s

reported revenue increased 69% to $497.1 million for
the year énded December 31, 2004, from $293.9 million -
for the same period in 2003. Revenues by product for the "

- ‘years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the respec-
* tive change of the 2004 period over the pl‘lOl’ year period
' were as follows

Yearstnded December 31‘,

. %of . | . - % of %
2004 Revenues | 2003 Revenues. Change
] (e mils) | Gromils) o
Niaspan._ | $319.1 64.2 §226.5. 771 40.9
- Advior | 1082 . 218 674 229 605
" Azmacort-| © 68.3 13.7 —  — "NA
- Other . | 15 0.3 -~ N/A

$497.1 ° 100.0

$293.9.° 1000  .69.1

. The increase in revenue was principally attributable

‘to increases in unit volume and price for'the Company s

Niaspan and Advicor products during the 2004 period as

* compared to the 2003 period. Of the $92.6 million increase

in Niaspan net sales during 2004, $52.8 million resulted
from 'increases in unit volume and $39.8 million resulted
from increases in price. Of the $40.8 million increasé in
Advicor net sales during 2004, $31.4 mrlhon resulted from

. increases in unit volume and $9 4 million resulted from
. increases in price. Additionally, the 2004 period includes

revenue for the Azmacort product, for which commer-

~ cialization began on April 1, 2004. These increases were

partially offset by the change in product return estimates .

- (as described above), which increased 2003 revenue by
~$11.1 million. ‘




As more fully described above, the Company records provisions for the estimation of allowances principally related to
managed care rebates, chargebacks related to Medicaid and Medicare and product returns and discounts as components
of revenués. An analysis of the Company’s gross sales, by product subject to each of these provisions for the years ended

December 31, 2004 and 2003, follows:

2004 2003

v Niaspan - Advicor Azmacort Niaspan Advicor Azmacort

Gross % of Gross % of  Gross % of Gross % of Gross % of Gross % of
Provisions For Sales Total Sales Total Sales Total Sales ~ Total  Sales Total Sales Total

) (in mils.) (in. mils.) (in mils.) (in mils,) (tn mils.) © (inmils,)

Rebates $314.6 70 $ 52.5 41 $27.0 28 $208.7 69 $26.9 37 N/A N/A
Chargebacks 90.3 20 7.7 6 -23.9 25 42.3 14 1.1 1 N/A N/A
Returns " 4524 100 127.1 100 96.3 100 303.3 100 73.0 100 N/A N/A
Discounts 452.4 100 127.1 100 96.3 100 303.3 100 73.0 100 N/A N/A

The Company had accrual balances related to its man-
aged care rebates and chargebacks of $50.0 million and
$18.2 million, as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respec-
tively. Furthermore, the Company had allowances against
its trade accounts receivable for product returns and dis-
counts of $2.8 million and $2.1 million, as of December
31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. .

Cost of sales increased 84% to $36.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2004, from $20.0 million for the
same period in 2003, primarily as a result of increased unit
sales of the Niaspan and Advicor products, combined with

the addition of the Azmacort product to the Company’s

product portfolio on March'31, 2004. In 2004, cost of
sales was approximately 7.5% of-net sales, as compared to
6.8% for the same period in 2003. The increase was pri- -
marily a result of changes in the product mix, including
the impact of the addition of Azmacort to the Company’s
product offering, partially offset by pI‘lCC increases as
described above.

The Company’s research and development expenses
increased 113% to $111.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004, from $52.2 million for the same
period in 2003. The increased expenses related primarily
to a one-time charge of $38.0 million related to the In-
process R&D Write-off, and to increases of $7.9 million
principally associated with clinical studies for the Com-
pany’s products under development, of $7.4 million in
personnel and personnel-related costs and of $1.9 mil-
lion in medical educational programs in support of the
Company’s marketed products »

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased
51% to $235.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2004, from $156.5 million for the same period in 2003.
Within this category, selling expenses increased to $197.2
million for the 2004 period from $124.3 million for the’
comparable 2003 period. The growth in selling expenses
was primarily related to increases of $38.5 million inroy-
alty expenses, of $20.6 million in sales force operating
costs in support of the Niaspan, Advicor and Azmacort
products and of $10.4 million of amortization related
to the Azmacort purchase. General and administrative
expenses increased to $38.5 million for the year ended

“December 31, 2004, from $32.2 million for the year ended

December 31, 2003. This increase in general and admin- -
istrative expenses was primarily related to increases of
$3.0 million in personnel and personnel-related costs,
of $1.3 million in professional fees and of $4.0 million
in other costs associated with the expanded activities of
the Company. The increases were partially offset by the
impact of a $6.0 million trademark litigation settlement
with Andrx Corporation and Andrx Laboratories, Inc.,
of which $2.0 million representing a reimbursement

of legal costs, was recorded as an offset to general and
administrative expenses.

As previously described, the benefit for income taxes in
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations
for the year enided December 31, 2004 includes the rever-
sal of $71.2 million of valuation allowance, of which
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$67.3 rnrlhon represents the portron reversed through the .-

effective tax rate for the period and $3.9 million relates to:

the reversal of valuation allowance.on deférred tax assets
expected to be realized through ordmary income in future

years. The benefit for income taxes also mcludes a $14.4
million deferred tax benefit related to the In- process
R&D Write-off, '

* As of December 31, 2004 the Company was sub]ect to’
the terms of the Décember 19; 2002, $30°million credit:

facility (the “Additional Standby Facility”), and the Decem-~

ber 21,'1999; $50 million credit facility (the “Standby, .
Facility’f), with Michae] Jaharis, Chairman Emeritus of .
the Companys Board of Drr‘ecto‘rs‘and its priricipal share-
holder. During 2003, the Company was-also subject to.the
terms of the September 1,.1999, $50 million credit facility
(the “Supplemental Credit Fac1hty”) with Mr. Jaharis and
with a transferee of Mr. Jaharis’ wife until its conversion’
into Common Stock durmg the fourth- quarter of 2003.
Interest expense under the Company’s credit facilities -
totaled $1.2 million and $3.3 million for. the years ended’ -
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The decrease
in interest expénse is mostly attrlbutable toa decrease in
outstanding borrowings. -

. The Company’s net income increased- 140% to $1423 ‘
mrlhon for the year ended December 31,2004, compared

‘were as follows

- Advicor . 674 . 129

Years Ended December 31 , 2003 and 2002: The Company’s

- reported revenue increased 70% to $293.9 million for the

year ended December 31, 2003, from $172.7 million for
the same period in 2002. Revenues by product for the
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the respec-
tive change of the 2003 perrod over the prior year perrod

Years Ended December 31,
% of o %of %
- 2003 Revenues 2002 Revenues. Change

(in mils.) (in mils.,) '
. Niaspan~ - - $226.5 77.1 - §145.6 84.3 55.6
271 15.7 . 148.7

©$293.9 1000  $172.7 - 100,0.. 702

- 'The increase in revenue was principally attributable .

. to increases in unit volume and price for the Company’s

products during the 2003 period as compared to the 2002

“périod, and to the change in product return estimates.

(as described above). Of the $80.9 million increase in -

‘Nz’z'zspan net sales during 2003, $55.0 million resulted

from increasesin unit volume and $25.9 million resulted
from increases in price. Of the $40.3 million increase in |

‘Advzcor net sales during 2003, $38.3 million resulted from -

increases in unit volume and $2 0 million resulted from

rncr,eases in prrce.

with $59.4 million for’ the year ended December 3\1 ,2003.

As more fully described above, the Company récords’ prov1snons for the estimation of allowances principally related to
managed care rebates, chargebacks related to Medicaid and-Medicare and product returns and discounts as components
of revenues. An analysis of the Company’s gross sales, by product, sub ect to each of these provisions for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, follows:-

_ 2003 N 2002

Niaspan A "Advicor Niaspan' Advicor
. S _ ‘ v . Gross % of Gross' % of  Gross % of - Gross % of
Provisions. For S e -Sales ©  Total *_ Sales: Total  Sales  Total  Sales : Total

o i o R (nmils) (in mils.)’ C (inmils) " (inmils,)

Rebates. = . R ‘ : (‘,$208.7‘ 69 .$26.9 37 $125.6 68 $11.2 . 36
Chargebacks .~ .~ S 423 14 . 220 12 0 01 0
Returns : o T . 03033 ~ 100 - 73.0 100+ 185.7 | 100 314 100
'Discounté B » o - o ‘303 301000 73 0 100 1857 100 314 - 100

‘The Company had accrual balarices related to its managed care rebates and chargebacks of $18 2 mrlhon and $8.7 million,
as of December 31, 2003 'and 2002, respectrvely Furthermore, the Company had allowances against its trade accounts receiv-
able for product returns and dlscounts of $2.1 million’ and $2.4 mllhon as of December 31, 2003 -and 2002, respectrvely
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Cost of sales increased 30% to $20.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003, from $15.4 million for the same

period in 2002, primarily as a result of increased unit sales -

of the Niaspan and Advicor products. In 2003, cost of sales
was approximately 6.8% of net sales, as compared to 8.9%
for the saime period in 2002. The decrease was primarily
a result of the price increases discussed above and, to a
lesser extent, of increased efficiencies associated with the
Company’s manufacturing processes.

The Company’s research and development expenses
increased 19% to $52.2 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2003, from $44.0 million for the same period in
2002. The increased expenses related primarily to increases
"of $4.2 million in personnel and personnel-related costs, -
and of $3.1 million principally associated with Advicor
clinical studies. These increases were partially offset
by decreases of $0.9 million in medical education costs
which were greater during the 2002 period in support
of the commercial launch of the Advicor product, of $0.9
million associated with formulation costs for products
under development and $0.2 million resulting from
Merck reimbursement payments. '

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased
20% to $156.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2003, from $130.1 million for the same period in 2002.
Within this category, selling expenses increased to $124.3
million for the 2003 period from $108.5 million for the
comparable 2002 period. The growth in selling expenses
was primarily related to increases of $13.9 million in sales
force operating costs in support of the Niaspan and Advicor
products, and of $2.3 million in royalty expenses. General
and administrative expenses increased to $32.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2003, from $21.6 million
for the year ended December 31, 2002. This increase in-
general and administrative expenses was primarily related
to increases of $3.7 million in personnel and personnel-
related costs, of $3.2 million in professional feés, of $2.5
million associated with a warrant award and with a modi-
fication made to a stock option grant previously made to a
former employee and of $1.2 million in other costs asso-
ciated with the expanded activities of the Company.

The Company recorded a $2.9 million income tax
provision for the year ended December 31, 2003, to
reflect $1.3 million of federal alternative minimum tax
and $1.6 million of state income tax liabilities that could

- not be offset by utilizing the Company’s NOLs.

The Company recorded net income of $59.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2003, compared with a net
loss of $20.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

“At December 31, 2004, the Company had cash and cash

equivalents of $258.7 million and working capital of
$245.1 million. The Company’s primary uses of cash to
date have been to fund selling, general and administrative
expenses, research and development expenses and the
acquisition of the Azmacort product.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $196.4
million in 2004, compared to net cash provided by operat-
ing activities of $55.6 million in 2003, and $1.2 million of
net cash used in operating activities in 2002. The increase
in net cash provided by operating activities in 2004 was
primarily a result of the increase in net income adjusted
for non-cash items, as well as increases in working capital
sources of cash. Working capital sources of cash during
2004 included decreases in inventory as well as increases
in accounts payable, accrued expenses and advance pay-
ments received on license agreements, partially offset by
increases in trade accounts receivable, prepaid expenses
and other current assets and deferred tax assets. The
net cash provided by operating activities in 2003 was pri-
marily a result of net income adjusted for non-cash items
partially offset by working capital uses of cash. Working
capital uses of cash during 2003 included increases in
trade accounts receivable, inventories, prepaid expenses
and other current assets and decreases in advance pay-
ments from customers, partially offset by increases in
accounts payable, accrued expenses and advance payments
received on license agreements. The net cash used in

' operating activities in 2002 was primarily a result of a net

loss adjusted for non-cash items partially offset by working
capital sources of cash. Working capital sources of cash in
2002 included decreases in the Company’s current non-
cash assets, except for an increase in trade accounts receiv-
able and increases in the Company’s current liabilities.

Net cash used in investing activities was $215.6 million
in 2004, compared to $11.0 million in 2003, and $6.7

~million in 2002. The significant increase in cash used in

investing activities during the year ended December 31,
2004, related principally to the purchase during the 2004
period of the Azmacort product, for $206.1 million. -
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In 2004, net -cash prov1ded by ﬁnancmg activities was .

$18.0 million, compared to net c‘as'h‘prox‘zided,by‘financ-‘» .

ing activities of $195.8 million'in 2003, and to’net cash

“used in flnancmg activities of $17.8 million i in2002.The

decrease in net cash provided by financing activities in
2004 was primarily related to the net proceeds recelved
in 2003 from the Cornpany s stock offering (as described
below), which were partially offset by the’ absence during

the 2004 period of the payments made during 2003+ against -

borrowmgs previously made undeér the Standby Facility."
The decrease in cash provided by financing activities
during the 2004 period as compared to 2003 was also
partially offset by an increase in cash received from the
exercise of stock options and from employee part1c1pat1on
in the employee stock purchase plan during.2004. '

On December 19, 2002, the Company entered into.an-
agreement with Michael ]aharls Chairman Emeritus of

the Company’s Board of Directors and:its principal share-
holder; whereby Mr. Jaharis agreed to replace the previous -

$30 million credit facility extended to the Company on -
July 1, 1998 (which was to expire on December 31, 2002),
with the Additional Standby Facility, expn"lng on June 30,
2008. In connection with this.new credlt arrangement,-

the Company granted to Mr. ]aharls non- ~detachable war-

rants to purchase 1,000,000 shares of the Cornpany s
Common' Stock at an exercise price based on the market .
price of the Company’s Common Stock on the date that -
the first draw under this facility occurs. The.Company
had no borrowings outstanding under the Additional
Standby Facility as of December 31, 2004. Borrowmgs,
when outstanding, will bear interést at the primerate
(5.25%.as of December 31, 2004), and. will be subjéct to -
the terms and conditions.of borrowings madé under the -
Supplemental Credit Facility, which in addition to:includ-
ing standard and customary loan'covenants and condltlons,
also includes the condition that the death of the lender
shall not have occurred, that lender, his spouse children’
and entities they control continue to own at least 40% of
the Common Stock of the Company anid that no material
‘adverse_change shall have occurred to the Company or
‘its financial operations. On January 10, 2005, Mr. Jaharis
gifted his rights and obligations under the Additional

Standby Facility to hlS wife. All other terms and condmonsv

of the- Addltlonal Standby Fac111ty remain unchanged
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On September 1 1999, the’Cdmpany formally agreed'

. .to the terms of an additional $50 million Supplemental
. Credit Facility initially entered into with Mr. Jaharis

on October 7, 1998. On July 21, 2001, the Company

_replaced its existing $50 million promissory note payable’
* to Mr. Jaharis with two $25 million promissory notes,

one payable in the name of Mr. Jaharis and the other

- payable in the name of Mr. Jaharis’ wife. With this

romissory note replacement, all of Mr. Jaharis’-existing -
p y P : g.

- rights and obligations under the Supplemental Credit

Facility, with respect to one-half of the outstanding

- amount, were transferred to Mrs. Jaharis, and were sub-
- sequently transferred by Mrs. Jaharis to a limited part-

nership (the “Limited Partnership”) that she controlled.
Allother terms and conditions of the Supplemental
Credit Facility remained unchanged ‘Borrowings under
the Supplemental Credit Facility were convertible at

'$4.91 per share and accrued interest at the prime rate.
' 'On November 25, 2003, in connection with an equity

‘offering of the Company’s Common Stock pursuant to

"an effective shelf registration statement, the Limited

Partnership controlled by Mrs. Jaharis exercised its right

. to convert $6,137,500 of borrowings outstanding under

~ the Supplemental Credit Facility into'1,250,000 shares

~ of the Company’s Common Stock: Those shares were
-then sold by the Limited Partnershlp as part of the equ1ty

offerlng The Company did not receive any proceeds

. from such sale by the Limited Partnership controlled by
~ Mrs. Jaharis. On December 31, 2003, all then outstanding
"borrowings under the Supplemental Credit Facility, which
‘totaled $43,862,500 and.bore interest at the prime rate,
"wete converted into 8,933,299 shares of the Company’s
*. Common Stock. The Supplemental Credit Faelhty termi-
‘nated as of December 31, 2003. :

On December 21, 1999, Mr. Jaharis agreed to extend

“another $50 million loan to the Company through the
o Standby Facility. Borrowings made under the Standby

Facility totaled $19 million as of Decémber 31, 2004, are

- due June 30, 2005, and are also subject to most of the

terms and conditions of borrowings made under the
Supplemental Credit Facility. In addition to including

“standard and customary loan covenants and conditions, .
- ~the Standby Facility includes the conditions that.the death




of the lender shall not have occurred, that lender, his
spouse and children and entities they control continue to-
own at least 40% of the Common Stock of the Company
and that no material adverse change shall have occurred
to the Company or its financial operations. In lieu of a
conversion feature, the Company granted to Mr. Jaharis
non-detachable warrants to purchase 6,000,000 shares -
of the Company’s Common Stock at $5.00 per share,
which approximated the market value of the Company’s
Common Stock on the effective date of the Standby
Facility. Mr. Jaharis exercised 2,000,000 and 200,000
warrants to purchase shares of the Company’s Common’
Stock at $5.00 per share on October 13, 2004 and
November 24,2004, respectively. As of December 31; 2004,
warrants to purchase 3,800,000 shares of the Company’s
Common Stock remained outstanding. On January 10,
2005, Mr. Jaharis gifted his rights and obligations under
the Standby Facility to his wife. All other terms and con-
ditions of the Standby Facility remain unchanged. The
exercise of a significant number of the warrants issued
under the Standby Facility will cause material dilution

to existing shareholders of the Company. The Company
believes that on or prior to the maturity date, it will have
sufficient cash, available credit and access to capital from
third parties to be able to repay the Standby Facility on

a timely basis in the event that Mrs. Jaharis does not
elect to exercise all or a portion of the remaining non-
detachable warrants to purchase shares of the Company’s
Cominon Stock. However, the Company believes that, if
the market price of the Company’s Common Stock con-
tinues to significantly exceed the warrant exercise price
established under the Standby Facility, which is $5.00 per
share, through the end of the warrant exercise period,
Mrs. Jaharis will elect to exercise the warrants available-
under this facility into shares of Kos Common Stock prior
to the end of the warrant exercise period, thereby relieving
the Company of the obligation to repay such facility. If
such warrant exercise were not to take place for any rea-
son, the Company would be required to utilize its cash .
flow from operations and its then remaining borrowing
capacity under its other facility with Mrs. Jaharis, if such
borrowing capacity is available at all, to repay borrowings
due under the Standby Facility.

The Company recorded $1.2 million and $3.3 million
of interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively, related to its credit facilities with
Mr. Jaharis and his transferees.

In January 2002, the Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion declared effective a shelf registration statement (the
“Shelf Registration”) filed by the Company for the sale,
from time to time, of up to $200 million of its Common
Stock, Preferred Stock, stock options, warrants and other
rights to-purchase Common Stock or Preferred Stock.
On October 10, 2003, the Company filed a new shelf reg-
istration statement that covered the shares of the earlier
Shelf Registration (the “Amended Shelf Registration”)
and which allowed the Limited Partnership to sell up to
1,500,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock in a
public offering; and on October 31, 2003, the Company
further amended the Amended Shelf Registration to
register an aggregate of 1,350,000 shares of Company
Common Stock held by Bristol-Myers Squibb Company
and the Company’s Chairman. The Amended Shelf
Registration was declared effective by the Securities
and Exchange Commission on October 31, 2003. On
November 25, 2003, the Company sold 3,750,000 shares
of Common Stock and the Limited Partnership sold
1,250,000 shares of Common Stock (converted from the
Supplemental Credit Facility) pursuant to the Amended
Shelf Registration. On December 22, 2003, the Company
sold an additional 650,000 shares of Common Stock
and the Company’s Chairman sold 100,000 shares of
Common Stock to cover over-allotments as permitted
in the Amended Shelf Registration. Net proceeds to the
Company resulting from the sale of the 4,400,000 shares
of Common Stock totaled $184.3 million. Proceeds from
the offerings, other than the proceeds pertaining to the
selling shareholders, were mostly used to finance the
purchase of the Azmacort product from Aventis.

Although the Company currently anticipates that,
including the capital available to the Company under

. the Additional Standby Facility through June 30, 2008

and the Standby Facility through June 30, 2005, it has

‘or has access to an amount of working capital that will

be sufficient to fund the Company’s operations for the
next twelve months, the Company’s cash requirements
during this period will be substantial and may exceed the
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amount of workrng capltal available to the Company The
Company’s ability to fund its operating requirements
and maintain an adequate level of working capital will
depend primarily on its ability to continue to generate
substantial growth in sales of it§’ ‘Nidspan, Advicor and
Azmacort products, its ability to continue to access its
credit facilities, its ability to control operating expenses *
and its ability to maintain-the protection afforded by its
patents. The Company’s failure to generate’ substantlal
growth in'the'sales of Niaspan, Advicor and Azmzzmrt con-

trol operating expenses, or meet the conditions necessary

for the Company to obtain funding under the Additional

Standby Facility and the Standby Fac1hty, and other events - '

—including the progress of the Company s résearch and
development prograims; the costs and timing of seeking
regulatory approvals of the Company’s products under "

development; the- Company’s ability to obtain regulatory. -

approvalsin the United States and abroad; the Company’s
ability to maintain its compliance with FDA regulations
and standards without adversely affecting its manufacturing
capability or ability to meet its production requirements
or profit margins; the Company’s ability to manufacture
products at'an econo_m_lcally feasible cost; costs in flhng,
prosecuting, defending and enforcing patent claims and -
other intellectual property rights and the outcome of law-
‘suits 1nvolv1ng the Company s intellectual property; the
extent and terms. of any collaborative research; manufac-
turing, marketing, joint venture, or other- arrangements

and changes in economic, regulatory, or competitive con-

_ditions or the Company s planned business—could cause

. the Company to require additional capital. In the event
“that the Company must raise additional capital to ﬁlnd
its ‘working capital needs, it may seek to raise such capltal
through loans, the issuance of debt securities or equity

securities; each of which would require, the consent of the

Company’s current lender. To the extent the Company -
raises additional capital by i 1ssu1ng equity securities or
obtaining borrowings convertible'into equity, ownershlp
dilution to existing shareholders will result; and future
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investors may be granted rights superior to those of exist-

“ing shareholdérs. Moreover, additional capital may not be

available‘to the Company on acceptable terms, or at all.

Contractual Ohhgatrons ‘
The followmg table summarizes the Company s signifi-
cant contractual obligations at December 31, 2004, and

" - the éffect such obligations are expected to have on Kos’

liquidity-and cash flows in future periods. This table

~excludes amounts already recorded on the Company’s bal-

ance sheet as current. hablhtres as of December 31, 2004.

Payments Due by Period

Less ‘ More
than 1-3 3-3 than

(in mi/lio“n“s) L lyear ~years vyedrs ' Syears ‘Total
- Operating lease o ‘
‘obligations $80 $13.6  $7.1 . $147 . $43.4
"Employment B . g o
agre‘ements L4 250 019 1169
" Short-term o ) . ’
obligations 190,  — = — 19.0
Capital lease 01- 02 - — 03
Total ‘ .
contractual . -
- -obligations $28.5° $163 $9.0 . $158 $69.6

As of December 31, 2004, the only long-term obliga-
tions of the Company subject to interest expense were its

o caprtal leases. The Company will be subject to interest-
- expense related to.its capital leases of $12,000 and $7,000

during 2005 and for the period frorn 2006 through 2007,

, respectrvely

- Purchase orders or contracts for the purchase of raw

’ materlals and other goods and services are not included in

the table above. The Company’s purchase orders are based

v on its current rnanufacturlng or operatmg needs and are

fulfilled by its vendors within a short period of time. As
of December 31, 2004, the Company had commitments
for raw. materials with two of its vendors totahng approxi- -

- mately. $2 0 million.




Contractual obligations such as sponsored research
and licensing agreements that are contingent upon the
achievement of certain milestones are not included in the
table above. Such arrangements are not considered con-
tractual obligations until the milestone is met by the third
party and, in most cases, are cancelable at the option of
the Company. As of December 31, 2004, assuming all
future milestones were met, additional required payments
related to sponsored research and licensing agreements
would be approximately $2.0 million.

On October 23, 2002, the Company signed an exclusive
international commercialization agreement with Merck
KGaA (“Merck”) to market the Niaspan and Advicor prod-
ucts outside the United States, Canada and Japan (the
“Merck Agreement”). As of December 31, 2004, in con-
nection with the Merck Agreement, Kos had received
$20.0 million in upfront, reimbursement and milestone
payments from Merck, including $15.0 million of upfront
and reimbursement payments (of which $3.8 million is
currently refundable to Merck if Kos fails to achieve cer-
tain regulatory milestones). Refundable amounts under
the Merck Agreement are not included in the table above.

On November 4, 2003, the Company and Takeda
announced a three-year agreement to co-promote Niaspan
and Advicor in the United States. Obligations associated
with Takeda and with a contract sales organization (“CSO”)
are based upon net sales of the Company and are not
included in the table above. The Company will pay Takeda
a royalty on incremental net sales of the Company’s
Niaspan and Advicor products in the United States above
a certain baseline amount. This co-promotion arrange-
ment has a three-year term commencing January 2004
and provides for residual payments to Takeda after the .
three years, if the parties do not renew the agreement:
The Company will pay the CSO a royalty based on net
sales of the Company’s Niaspan and Advicor products
during a five-year period beginning January 1, 2002 (the
“CSO Agreement”). The royalty amounts payable to the
CSO are subject to a cumulative minimum of $50 million
over the term of the CSO Agreement, not to exceed $65

million over such contract term. Through December 31, .
2004, the Company had incurred $28.6 million in royal-
ties related to the CSO Agreement.

The expected timing of payment of the obligations
discussed above is estimated based on current informa-
tion. Timing of payments and actual amounts paid may be
different depending on changes to agreed-upon amounts
tor some obligations. Amounts disclosed as contingent or
milestone-based obligations are dependent on the achieve-
ment of the milestones or the occurrence of the con'tingent
events and can vary significantly.

Forward-Looking Information:

Certain Cautionary Statements

Statements contained in this Annual Report may contain
information that includes or is based upon forward-
looking statements within the meaning of the Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking state-

mients present the Company’s expectations or forecasts of

future events. These statements can be identified by the
fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current
facts. They frequently are accompanied by words such

as “anticipate,”l“estimate, expect,” “project,” “intend,”
“plan,” “believe,” and other words and terms of similar
meaning. In particular, these include statements relating
to the Company’s ability to: increase the amount of the
sales of its products, including the success of its relation-
ship with its co-promotion and commercialization part-
ners; respond to competitive pressures from competing
therapies for the treatment of cardiovascular, respiratory
and other conditions that are the focus of the Company’s
products; successfully develop and commercialize new
products under development and within expected time
frames; successfully acquite new products; successfully
integrate and promote newly acquired products, including
Azmacort; continue its strong financial performance and
that of its products; increase its stock price; protect the
strength of its patents; achieve a successful conclusion

to the ongoing litigation with Barr Laboratories, Inc.;
achieve market clearance for its products outside the

” @ » o«
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Umted States; commeruahze its products 0ut51de the.
United States; have a’successful relationship with Merck -
and Oryx; successfully obtain regulatory approval for its
products; achieve its goal for future sales levels, operating
margins, earnings growth and shareholder value; con=
tinue to manufacture and supply sufficient quantities-of
Niaspan and Advicor and to source an adequate supply of
Azmacort; achieve it goal for future growth in its market

share of the U.S. cholestero] market; meet the CODdlthDS '

necessary to obtain funding under its fundirig arrange-
ments; increase the level of capital expenditures in future
periods; and meet its expectations regarding future capltal
needs. These forward—lookmg statements are sub)ect to
risks and uncertainties which may cause actual results
to differ materially from those projécted in'a forward-

~ looking ‘statement. These r1sks and urnicertainties include
the continued market acceptance of the Advicor: product,
the expected continued grotwth in sales of the Niaspan

product, the ability.of Kos to continue to build awareness

for Advicor within the medical community, the ablhty

- of the Company to generate increasing sales of Advicor
without d1m1n1sh1ng the sales of Niaspan, the success of
the Company’s relationship with Takeda, the Company s
ability to-commercialize its products outside the United
Stdtes and the success of its relationship with Merek and
Oryx, the Company’s ability to attract and retain sales ,
professionals, the Company’s ability to successfully ,
develop and commercialize new. products under develop—
ment and within expected time frames; the Companv s -
ability to avoid the re-importation of its _products into the
United States at prices that ate lower than those main-
tained by the Cornpany in the United States, the market
acceptance of the Azwiacort product, the, growth in sales
of the Azmacort product, the Cornpany s ability to-build
awareness of Azmacort within the medical Communltv, the
Company s ablhty to continue to. manufacture and supply
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suff1c1ent quantities of szzspzm and An’wmr and to-source -

~ and maintain adequate supply of Azmﬂcart the Company’s

ablhty to increase its stock price, grow revenue, control
expenses and-grow earnings and shareholder value, the
Company’s ablhty to meet the conditions necessary to

~ obtain funding under its funding arrangements, the

Company’s ability to retain sufficient cash, avdilable

_credit and access to capital from third parties to be able
. to repay its credit obligations on a timely basis and meet

its expectations regarding future capital needs, the protec-
tion afforded by the Company’s patents, the Company’s-
ability to maintain compliance with FDA standards with-

" out adversely affecting its manufacturing capablhty or
‘ability to meet its production requirements, the Company’s -

ability to ensure compliance with prescription sales and

‘rnarl\etlng laws and regulat1ons changes in the regula-’

- tory environment governing the Company s compliance
- with the FDA and the Patent and Trademark Office,

the Company’s ability to minimize the fluctuation of

-wholesaler and distributor buying patterns, including .

through the use of inventory management agreements,
the- Company s ability to prevent generic manufacturers.

" from distributing generic extended-release niacin prod-

ucts, the Company’s ability to achieve a successful reso-

" lution of the on-going litigation with Barr Laboratories,

Inc., the Company’s ability to maintain compliance with
various government regulations, including those established

by theU.S. Department of Health and Human Services. .
. and the Department of Justice, the effect of conditions i in

the pharmaceutical industry and the economy in general,

- changes in the business and regulation of health reim- .

bursement, as well as certain other risks. A rnore detailed

}discussion of risks attendant to the forward-looking state-

ments included in this Annual Report is set forth in the

- Company’s Form 10-K for the period ended December

31, 2004. Further, certain forward- looking statements”
are based upon assumptions of future events, Wthh may




not prove to be effective. Forward-looking statements
included herein are made only as of the date such state-
ments are made, and the Company does not undertake
any, obligation to publicly update or correct any forward-
looking statement to reflect events or circumstances that
- subsequently occur or of which the Company hereafter
becomes aware. Subsequent written and oral forward-
looking statements attributable to the Company or to
persons acting on its behalf are expressly qualified to

in their entirety by the cautionary statements set forth
herein and in other reports filed by the Company with
the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Market for the Company’s Common Stock and
Related Shareholder Matters :
The Company’s Common Stock, par value $.01 per share,
commenced trading on March 7, 1997, on the Nasdaq
National Market under the symbol “KOSP.” As of March
1, 2005, there were 449 registered shareholders of record
of the Company’s Common Stock.

The following table sets forth, for the fiscal periods
. indicated, the range of high and low prices for trades of
the Company’s Common Stock on the Nasdaq National
Market System. ' .

Year Ended December 31, 2004 High  Low
First Quarter $59.41 $37.06
Second Quarter 44.40  29.55
Third Quarter - 3941 28.00
Fourth Quarter 4574 33.45
Year Ended December 31, 2003 High Low
First Quarter $20.89  $15.51
Second Quarter 27.10 16.79
Third Quarter 4286  22.50
Fourth Quarter 47.73 32.42

The Company has not declared or paid any cash divi-
dends on its Common Stock. The Company currently
anticipates that it will retain future earnings, if any, to
fund the development and growth of its business and does
not intend to pay dividends on its Common Stock in the
foreseeable future.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About
Market Risk _

The Company’s exposure to market risk is limited primar-
ily to fluctuating interest rates associated with variable
rate indebtedness that is subject to interest rate changes

‘in the United States. The Company does not use, nor has

it historically used, derivative financial instruments to
manage or reduce market risk. At December 31, 2004, the
Company had $19 million of variable rate indebtedness
bearing interest at the prime rate (5.25% at December

31, 2004).
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, »

2004

2003

Assets
" Current Assets:
Cash and cash equrvalents
Trade accounts rece1vab1e, net
Inventories, net L
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Current deferred tax asset, net ' '

$258,702,556
74,567,946
10,649,370
11,571,944
41,185,755

$ 259,957,534
37,465,695
6,406,125
-10, 123 004

Total current assets
Fixed Assets, net
Long Term Deferred Tax Asset, net -
Intangible Assets, net '
Other Assets

396,677,571
23,340,585
13,346,245

150,078,880

3,482,467

313 95'2 358
17,841,356

3,727,457

Total assets ~

$586,925,748

$ 335,521,171

Liabilities and Shareholders Equlty '
Current Liabilities: -
Accounts payable
Accrued expense$ . :
Advance payment received on license agreement net of amortlzed amount
Note payable to shareholder - IR
Current portlon of capital lease obllgatlons

$ 9,160,532
104,898,205
18,384,492
19,000,000
131,820

$ 7,784,968
43,313,390
14,770,794

24,614

Total current liabilities

151,575,049

65,893,766

Notes Payable to Shareholder, net of current portion
Capital Lease Obligations; net of current portion ~ «
Commitments and Contmgencres (Notes 1; 12 and 14)
Shareholders’ Equrty :
Preferred stock, $:01 par value, 10, 000 000 shares authorlzed none 1ssued
and outstanding
Common stock, $.01 par value, 50, OOO 000 shares authorlzed 40 211 375
and 36, 791 290 shares issued-and outstandmg as of December 31, 2004
~and 2003, respectrvely
Additional paid-in capital
Restricted stock grant
Accurnulated deficit

208,518

402,114
526,462,711

(94,568)
(91,628,076)

30 000, 000

367,913

473,601,791

(394,895)
(233,947,404)

Total shareholders’ equity .

435,142,181

239,627,405

. Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

$586,925,748 |i335 521,171

" - L L s Voo ' -
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

45,835,563
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2004 2003 2002
Net sales $495,544,530 | $293,907,409 $172,692,718
Licensing revenue 1,559,359 L — —
Total revenue 497,103,889 293,907,409 172,692,718
Cost of sales (for 2004, does not include $10.3 million of amortization
charges related to the Azmacort developed and core technology
intangible asset acquired from Aventis; see Note 6) 36,925,890 - 20,038,529 15,361,756
. 460,177,999 273,868,880 157,330,962
Operating expenses:
Research and development 111,064,304 52,202,981 43,980,867
Selling, general and administrative - 235,717,688 156,469,215 130,144,643
Total operating expenses 346,781,992 208,672,196 174,125,510
Income (loss) from operations 113,396,007 " 65,196,684 (16,794,548)
Other expense (income):
Interest income, net 1 (2,387,839) (613,984) (160,274)
Interest expense, related parties 1,209,465 3,316,367 4,038,563
Interest expense, other - 8,415 3,575 7,306
Other expense (income) (3,577,304) 198,332 136,021
Total other expense (income) (4,747,263) 2,904,290 4,021,616
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes 118,143,270 62,292,394 (20,816,164) .
Provision for/(Benefit from) income taxes (24,176,058) 2,878,821 —
Net income (loss) $142,319,328 | $ 59,413,573 $(20,816,164)
Basic earnings (loss) per share of Common Stock S 3.76 | § 271§ (1.01)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share of Common Stock $ 313 | § 1.53 & (101
Weighted average shares of Common Stock and Common Stock
equivalents outstanding: :
Basic . 37,897,597 21,913,928 20,582,205
Diluted 41,033,325 20,582,205
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Consolldated Statements of Shareholders Eqwty (Deflmt)

v

Additional

. C‘ommt)e -StOij © Paid-in -~ Restricted Accurnulated -
) ‘Shares.. . Amount =, Capital . Stock Grant Deficic Total -
-Balance at December 31 2001 . © 20,492,371 $204,924-. § 214,895,089 § (994,521) $(272,544,813) § (58,439,321)
Common Stock issued to emp]oyees under S ) o T R e
Kos Savings Plan - ‘ < 42353 . . 424 . 760,891 — o UTBL3IS
Issuance of Common Stock to employees o o SR ‘ ) ’ :
under Stock Purchase Plan S ceo 77,003 770 T 1,624,184 — oo— 1,624,954
Exercise of stock options - ' S 196,132 - 11,961 1,646,621 — — . 1,648,582
Compensation expense on restricted e : o ) L
Common Stock grant - . . _— 300,000 —_ . 300,000
Compensatlon cost on Common. Stock h T o R ', C ‘ .
- warrants award - .o = C— 211,500 — L= - 211,500
Net loss : .  — — = — (20,816,169  (20,816,164)
Balance at December-31,2002 - . 20,807,859 208,079 219,138,285 (694,521) (293,360,977) - (74,709,134)
Issuance of Common Stock: cee T 44400,000 CL 44,000 184,232,585 — ’ . — 184,276,585
Conversion of Note Pavable to Sharehol der‘ IR . O A o L
to Comimon Stock .. - . ‘10,183,299 © 101,833 . 49,898,167 — . — 50,000,000
Common Stock issued to emplovees under B S
Kos Savings Plan - | ‘ 45449 - 454 1,078,873 — o — 1079327
Issuance.of Common Stock to employees P . , : L o ‘ S L
under Stock Purchase Plan - 125,267, 1,253 1,981,565 - = 1,987:818
Exercise ofstock options S 1,329416 ¢ 12,294 13,604,654 L= T~ 13,616,948
Compensation expense on resmcted R o o o '
Common Stock grant - '4\“ ' - = L= 299,626 - — 299,626
Compensatlon cost on Common Stock - ERE SR A o o o -
warrants and modlﬁcatlon of.stock S IR o ‘ . . ’
option grant - S o — T = 2,534031 - — 2,534,231 -
Tax benefit ofstock optlon exercises IR B — — 1,133,431 N I— 1,133,431
Netincome™ : : o e 59,413,573 59,413,573
Balance at December 31, 2003 ' 36,791,290 - 367,913, - 473,601,791 (394,895)  (233,947,404) ~- 239,627,405
Conversion of Note Payable to'Shareholder T CeT S C -
to Common Stock. . . © 22000000 22,000 10,978,000 — 11,000,000
~ Common Stock issued to employees under oo , R ‘ : h ‘ o
- Kos Savings Plan 41,139 411 1,569,215 -~ - - — 1,569,626
Issuance of Common Stock to employees o - ' | S ‘
under Stock Purchase Plan o 110778 L1080 2,632,027 - U 2,633,135 .
" Exercise ofstock opuons o : - 1,068,168 } 10,6827 o 15,433,678 = B 15,444,360 .
Compensatlon expense on restricted e . . D ] . : - - .
Common Stock grant. LT — — = 300327 0 0300327
Tax benefit of stock opt1on exerc1ses T — 722,248,000 C— — 22,248,000
Net income g . _— — - - — 142319328 142,319,328
Balance at December 31, 2004 - 40,211 375, $402 114  $526,462,711 : $ (94 568) $(91,628 076) $435,142,181

vThe accompanvmg notes are an integral part ofthese fmancml stateiments..
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Cbnsolidated-Statements of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31,

2004

2003

2002

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net Income (Loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by

(used in) operating activities—

$ 142,319,328

$ 59,413,573

$(20,816,164)

Provision for doubtful accounts 237,577 217,143 150,000
Depreciation 4,311,529 3,310,964 2,110,538
Amortization , 10,982,631 - =
Provision for inventory obsolescence 959,859 770,538 480,000
Recognition of deferred revenue under license agreement (1,136,306) — —
- Reimbursement recognized under license agreement ' (249,996) (229,206) —
Loss from disposal of fixed assets 364,293 197,606 131,806
Deferred income tax benefit » (24,176,058) — —
Common Stock issued to enipldyees under Kos Savings Plan 1,569,626 1,079,327 761,315
Compensation expense o restricted stock grant 300,327 299,626 300,000
Compensation cost on Common Stock warrants and optlons — 2,534,231 211,500
Tax benefit of stock option exercises 22,248,000 1,133,431 —
‘Write-off of acquired in-process research and development - 38,000,000 — —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:. :
Trade accounts receivable (37,339,828) (15,982,827)  (10,560,920)
Inventories 1,796,896 (1,249,649) 1,325,155
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (1,448,940) (4,228,711) 2,072,165
Deferred tax assets (30,355,942) — —
Other assets’ ' 10,000 (74,152) 10,592
Accounts payable 1,375,564 597,447 2,490,167
Accrued expenses 61,584,815 11,152,668 8,456,207
Advance payments from customers S — (9,128,668) 2,437,476
Advance payment received.on license agréemert 5,000,000 5,796,875 9,203,125
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 196,353,375 55,610,216 (1,237,038)
(continued) .
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Consblidated Stétemen’ts of Ca_:sh’ Flows f(conzim)ed) |

~ For the Year Ended Decémber 31,

2004

2003

2002

Cash Flows from Investing Actlvntnes a
Capital expendltures and deposits on fixed assets to be acqmred
- Product acquisition
Purchases of marketable securities

|'$ (9,535,881)

(206,061,511)

511,043 794)

(13,564 297) _

$ (6 729 750)

Sales of marketable securities ‘ R 13,564,297 . —
“Net cash used in investing activities (215,597,392) | (11,043,794)  (6,729,750)
Cash Flows from Fmancmg Activities: o : . |
Net proceeds from issuance of Commion Stock —_ 184,276,585 —
Proceeds from issuance of Common Stock to. employees under ;o ’ o o
Stock Purchase’ Plan , : . 4 2,633,135 | 1,982,818 1,624,954
Net proceeds from exercise of stock optlons T - 15,444,360 13,616,948 1,648,582
Borrowings under Notes Payﬂable, to Shareholder - ; — IR — . 18,000,000,
Payments of Notes Payable to Sharehdlder’ T - (4,000,000):  (39,000,000)
Payments under capital lease obligations . ; (88,456) (57,285) (53,253)
‘ © Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities - 17,989,039 | 195,819,066 * - (1\7,779,717) o
~ Net increase (decrease) in cash and Cash equivalents ‘ (1,254,978) |- 240,385,488 - (25,746,505)
Cash and Cash Equlvalents beginning of period - © 259,957,534 19,572,046 45,318,551
Cash and Cash Equxyalents, end of period $ 258,702,556 | $259,957,534 $ 19,572,046
» Supplemental Disclosure of Cash ]Flowlnform‘atio‘n: S C L . R ,
Interest paid $ 1444801 | §$ 3,075,218 "S 3,833,472
Income taxes pa1d 5,454,000 | 2,459,898 130,702
Supplemental Disclosure of Non-cash Information: '
_.Conversion of Note Payable to Shareholder to Common Stock -~ - o : T
(See Note 8) : : ' '$ 11,000,000 | 5 '50,000,000_

Acquisition of equ1pment under capltal lease obli 1gat10ns

The accompany ing notes are an mtggral part of these fmancxal statemients. -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. General : ,

Kos Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“Kos” or the “Company”)
develops prescription pharmaceutical products principally
for the cardiovascular and respiratory markets.

On July 28, 1997, the Company received clearance
from the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”)
to market Niaspan® for the treatment of mixed lipid dis-
orders, a condition in which a patient is observed to have
several abnormalities in the levels of the fatlike substances,
called lipids, that contribute to heart disease. Niaspan is
the only once-a-day prescription and the first extended-
release formulation of any type of product with niacin
as the active ingredient ever approved by the FDA for the
treatment of mixed lipid disorders. Niaspan is indicated
for the following: (1) reduce elevated total cholesterol, low-
density lipoprotein cholesterol, commonly referred to as
LDL or “bad cholesterol,” and apolipoprotein B, another
lipid particle, and increase low high-density lipoprotein
cholesterol, commonly referred to as HDL or “good cho-
lesterol”; (i) reduce very high serum triglycerides, which
are fatty substances in the blood that contribute to heart
disease; (iii) reduce elevated total and LDL cholesterol
when used in combination with a bile-binding resin, which
is a different class of drugs that reduces bad cholesterol;
(iv) reduce recurrent nonfatal myocardial infarction, or
the recurrence of nonfatal heart attacks; and (v) prorﬁote
the regression or slow the progression of atherosclérosis,
which is a medical condition involving the narrowing of
the arteries to the heart, when combined with bile-binding
resins. Additionally, Niaspan’s prescribing information
references its ability to significantly reduce lipoprotein
(a), which is referred to as the “very bad cholestero]” and
is an independent risk factor for coronary heart disease.

On January 28, 2002, the Company launched Advicor®,
a solid-dose drug containing Niaspan and lovastatin, which
is a currently marketed cholesterol-lowering drug, for
the treatment of mixed lipid disorders. The Company
believes that a once-a-night tablet with the combined
complementary properties of its Niaspan product and
lovastatin represents an effective method for treating
patients with mixed lipid disorders.

On March 8, 2004, the Company announced that it
had entered into a product acquisition agreement with
Aventis Pharmaceuticals Holdings Inc. (the “Azmacort
Acquisition Agreement”) and a finished product supply
agreement (the “Azmacort Supply Agreement” and
together with the Azmacort Acquisition Agreement, the
“Aventis Agreements”) with Aventis Pharmaceuticals Inc.
(collectively with Aventis Pharmaceuticals Holdings Inc.,

“Aventis”) to acquire global rights to the Azmacort®

. (triamcinolone acetonide) inhalation aerosol franchise.

The transaction was completed on March 31, 2004.
Accordingly, Kos began recording revenue for all sales
related to the Azmacort product beginning April 1, 2004.
No assurance can be given that the Company’s products

can be successfully marketed, that products under devel-
opment can be successfully formulated or manufactured
at acceptable cost and with appropriate quality, or that
required regulatory approvals will be obtained. The
Company is subject to a number of other risks including,

but not limited to, uncertainties related to market accep-

tance, future capital needs and uncertainty of additional
funding, including its ability to meet all of the conditions
necessary to obtain funding under its credit facilities with
Michael Jaharis and his transferees; uncertainties related
to the protection afforded by the Company’s patents and
patent applications; uncertainties related to foreign regu-
latory approvals; uncertainties related to patents and
trademarks, including interference and risk of infringement
and the outcome of litigation related to the Company’s
intellectual property, including the litigation with Barr
Laboratories, Inc.; uncertainties relating to the timing of

any generic entry into the extended-release niacin market;

uncertainties related to competition and technological
changes, government regulation, dependence on product
development collaborators, limited manufacturing expe-
rience and risk of scale-up, dependence on single sources
of supply; and no assurances of adequate third-party reim-
bursement. The likelihood of the success of the Company
also must be considered in light of the uncertainty caused
by problems, expenses, complications and delays frequently
encountered in connection with the development of new
business ventures.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation: The Consolidated Financial State-
ments include the results of the Company and its subsid-

" iaries, Aeropharm Technology, LLC and Kos Life Sciences,

LLC. All intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation.

Reclassification: Balances related to the Company’s sales
returns and allowances have been reclassified on the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and
Related Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, in order to

conform to the current year presentation.
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Notes to Consolidated Finéncial._StétementS_ (.contirz‘u‘ed)

¢
‘

Use af Estzmatey The preparation of fmancml statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States requires. management to make esti-
mates and assumptrons that affect the reported amounts,
of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and .

the reported amounts of revenues and expenses durmg the .

reporting period. Significant estimates and assumptions .
made by management in the preparation of the accom-
panying financial statements include the allowance for
dcubtful accounts; reserves for inventory obsolescence,

product returns; chargebacks; managed care rebates reim-

bursements relating to Medicaid and Medicare discounts
and other sales allowances; estimation of customer inven-
tory levels; estimation of the useful lives and reahzablhty of
recorded intangible assets; and the accounting for i income
taxes. Actual results could differ from those est1mates

Cas/a and Cﬂ.vb Equzvalenty The Company con51ders all
hlghly liquid investments purchased with an orrgmal
maturity of 90 days or less to be cash equ1valents

Allowance jbr Doubtful:Accounts: The Company specrﬁcally’
analyzes its trade receivables and provides réserves for
items determined not to be collectable. In addition, the
Company provides general reserves for a portron of
‘receivables where items, generally based on age, are
deemed to represent a significant risk of loss. Hrstormally,
the Company has not had significant write- offs of its
trade accounts receivable. :

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or
market. Cost is determirned using the first-in, fxrst—out
method. Components of inventory cost include raw mate-:
rials, labor and manufacturing overhead. The Company »
- considers factors such as the amount of inventory on
hand, estimated time reqmred to sell such inventories, -
remaining shelf life-and- current market conditions to -
determine whether i mventorles are stated.at the lower of
cost or market. ) .
Certain raw materlals used by the Company in the
-manufacture of its Nm:pzm and Advicor products-are avail-
able from a limited number of supphers The Company
obtains the Azmacort product pursuant to a supply agree-
ment with. Aventis that will remaid in effect until at least
March 31, 2009. As such the Company relies on_ Aventis
‘to manufacture and supply adequate quantities of the
finished Azmacort product. Although there.is one other °
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company that is currently qualified to manufacture and .

“supply the Azwmacort product, the Company does not have

any contractual arrangement with such other entity. As a
result, the Company relies solely on Aventis to supply the
Company with the Azmacort product. The Company is -

" also dependent on.its other suppliers to allocate a sufficient

pOI‘thIl of their capacity to meet the Company’ s needs. -

‘Long -Lived Assets: The Company evaluates the recover-

ability of long-lived assets whenever events or. changes

in c1rcumstances indicate that the carrying amount of -

an asset'may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets
to be held and used is measured by the comparison of
the carrying amount of the assets to the estimated undis-

- counted future cash flows associated w1th them. At the
_ time such evaluations indicate that the future undlscounted :
_cash flows of certain long-lived assets are not sufficient to

recover-the carrying value of such assets, the assets are

-adjusted to their fair values.

The Company evaluates the recoverabrlrty of long -lived
assets held for sale by comparing the asset’s carrying
amount with its fair value less cost to sell. No assets were.

_held for sale as of December 31, 2004 or 2003.

Fair Valu‘q of Financial Instruments: As of December 31,
- 2004 and 2003, the carrying amount of cash and cash

equivalents, trade accounts receivable and accounts pay-
able approximates fair value due to the short-term nature
of these accounts. The fair value of notes payable to share-
holder is determined using interest rates in effect as of the
balance sheet date and, because interest expense is payable
ut1l1zmg variable rates that re-price frequently, the carry—
ing valte approximates falr value.

Concentration of Credit Risk: The Company mamtams its
cash and cash equivalents with a major financial institu-
tion. The Company performs periodic evaluations of the
relative'credit standing of th1s institution to 11m1t its
credit risk exposure. . :

The Company conducts-a 51gn1f1cant amount of its sales

* with a limited number of large pharmaceutical wholesalers

and warehousing chains. Accordingly, 94% of the trade

~ accounts receivable before allowances at December 31,

2004, were represented by five of these customers. The-

" Company- performs periodic evaluations of the financial

condition of all customers to limit its credit risk exposure,

" - but does not obtain collateral. The Company has no sig-
- nificant off-balance-sheet concentrations of credit risk.




Revenue Recognition: Sales and the related cost of sales are
recognized at the time product arrives at the customer’s
location. The Company’s largest customers are distributors
who warehouse product.and, in turn, sell that product to
retailers and others. Net revenue by product for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 respectively,
are as follows:

December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Niaspan $319,071,000 | $226,541,000  $145,646,000
Advicor 108,197,000 | 67,366,000 27,047,000
" Azmacort 68,277,000 — —
Qther ~ 1,559,000 — —
Total $497,104,000 | $293,907,000  $172,693,000

Net sales consist of gross sales to the Company’s cus-
tomers less provisions for expected returns from custom-
_ers, customer discounts and rebates and chargebacks to
~ managed care organizations and government units with

whom the Company has contracts. These provisions
totaled $180.3 million, $83.0 million and $44.4 million
for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The most significant of these amounts is the
Company’s provision for rebates and chargebacks to man-
aged care organizations and governmental units. For the
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, Kos’ provision
for managed care and government rebates and charge-
backs increased as a percentage of gross sales by 22% and

14%, respectively, over the preceding period, mostly as a

result of increased availability of the Company’s Niaspan
and Advicor products to patients having access to medical
care through managed care organizations and government
units, including the second quarter 2004 Kos introduction
of the Azmacort product. Included in “Accrued expenses”
in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets are
$52.8 million and $20.3 million at December 31, 2004

and 2003, respectively, related to these provisions:

~ The most pertinent inputs used in the estimation of
the Company’s sales allowances and accruals, and product
inventory levels in its distribution channel (as discussed
below), include prescription data (derived from a third-
party publication), consumer price index (derived from a

" third-party publication), product best price (derived from
the Company’s contractual arrangements) and average
manufacturer price (“AMP”) (computational in nature
using historical data). Of these inputs, prescription data
and AMP require significant estimation.

Accounting for Product Returns—Impact on Revenue Recogni-
tion: The Company’s return policy allows a customer to
return product no sooner than six months prior to the
product’s expiration date and no later than one year after
the product’s expiration date. The Company periodically
evaluates the volume of its products that are in customer
inventories or elsewhere in the distribution channel to
determine whether increased risk of product returns exists.

" For the period from the introduction of its Nigspan and

Advicor products through December 31, 2002, Kos’ return -
risk expectations were consistently based on its limited
product return experience given the early-stage nature
of its products and of the Company. Accordingly, Kos
established a specific return risk estimate based on esti-
mated inventory levels in the distribution channel that
was used to determine the amount of revenue that could
be recorded during a given period. During the quarter
ended March 31, 2003, as a result of the significant his-
tory of minimal returns for both products since their
introduction, Kos revised its return risk estimates to
reflect the historically low product return patterns.
This change in accounting estimate resulted in the
Company recognizing as revenue all product shipments
made during the year ended December 31, 2003, as well

~ as $11.1 million of its prior period product shipments not

previously recognized as revenue because of its previous
product return risk exposure estimates. The impact of this
change in estimate increased the Company’s reported rev-
enues, net income, and basic and diluted earnings per share
by $11.1 million, $9.9 million, and $0:45 per share and
$0.24 per share, respectively, for the vear ended December
31, 2003. The Company will continue to monitor whole-
saler inventory levels, and, if the Company’s product
return risk exceeds acceptable levels, the Company may

" be required to not recognize the revenue and related costs

associated with the excess inventory until such return risk
is mitigated.

Shipping and Handling Costs: The Company typically does
not charge customers for shipping and handling costs.
Shipping and handling costs are classified as “Cost of
sales” in the accompanying Consolidated Statements

of Operations.

International Commercialization Agreement with Merck: On
October 23, 2002, the Company signed an exclusive inter-
national commercialization agreement with Merck KGaA
(“Merck”) to market the Company’s Niaspan and Advicor
products outside the United States, Canada and Japan
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(the “MercL Agreement”) Under terms of the Merck
Agreement, Merck will provide Kos up.to; $61. 0 million .

in licensing, upfront, milestone and reimbursement pay-
ments. Kos, which manufactures the product supplied to
Merck, receives licensing revenue amounting to 25% of -
net sales of the products in the territory, which rncludes
the cost of goods sold, and upfront and milestone payments

upon the achiévement of cértain regulatory, approvals and

sales thresholds. During the year ended December 31,
2004, Kos recéived $5.0 million from Merck related tor the
attainment of certain milestones and, through December

31,2004, has received $20.0 million in upfront, reimburse- -

ment. and milestone payments from Merck, including
$15.0 million of upfront and reimbursemeént payments
(of which $3.8 m1ll1on is currently refundable to-Merck if

Kos fails to achieve certain regulatory milestones). Merck. -
is responsrble for conductmg Phase IV clinical studies and

commercialization activities while Kos is responsrble for -
" obtaining initial marketmg authomzatlon in all major .
European countries and for the supply and manufacturrng
of the products.
The Company’s pOlle with respect to the Merck

Agreement is to (i) record hcensmg revenue as the product’
sales are made by Meérck; (ii) record ‘milestone and- upfront
paymients as lrcensmg revenue following milestone attain-

ment by systematically recognizing such payments as rev-
enue over the then remaining agreement périod, using
the stra1ght—11ne method; and (iii) record - reimbursement .
payments received from Merck by systematically recog-
nizing such' payments as an offset to operating experises _
over the then remaining agreement per1od usmg the
straight-line method.

For the year ended December 31, 2004 the Company
recorded $1.6 million of licensing revenue and amorti-
zation of upfront and milestone payments received pur-
suant to the Merck Agreement. During the years ended
December:31, 2004 and 2003, the Company also: recorded
$0.3 million and $0.2 million, respectrvely, as an offset
to research and development expenses pursuant to the v
Merck Agreement. * L '

The Company expects-to continue to recogmze as reve—
nue or as an offset to reséarch and development éxpeénses,
over the remaining term of the Merck Agreement, the
upfront, reimbursement and'milestone payments received
from Merck. Included in “Advance payment received on

license agreement net of amortized amount” in the dccom- .

panying Consohdated ‘Balance Sheets as of December 31,
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* Leasehold improvements

200‘4,' are $18.4 million related to upfront, reimburse-.

" ment and milestone payments received from Merck that

are expected to be recognized as licensing revenue or
as an offset to research and development expenses in

. future perlods

Co-Promotion and Strategic Alliance Arrangements: On

October 17, 2003, the Company entered into a three-year

" agreement with Takeda Pharmaceuticals North America,
 Inc. (“Takeda”).to co-promote Niaspan and Advicor in the
- United States. Pursuant to this agreement, Takeda will

utilize'its U.S.-based sales force to promote Niaspan and
Advicor in addition to its own product. Takeda isrespon-
sible for providing a significant promotional effort-and
for all costs associated with its sales force, including pro-

~ motional materials and samples. The-Company is respon-

sible for manufacturmg and supplying both products and
collects and records all sales associated with its products.
Takeda receives a'royalty on incremental net sales of the

~products in the United States above a certain baseline

amount. This'co-promotion arrangement has a three-year
term commencing January 2004 and provides for residual

- . payments to Takeda after the three years, if the parties do

not renew the agreement.

Fixed Assets: F1xed assets are stated at cost, less accumu-

lated depreciation and amortization. Deprec1at10n and
~ amortization are provided using the straight-line method
“over the estimated useful lives of the assets or lease terms

as follows:
. Years
.- Furniture and equipment  * ' s
* Computer-software and hardware L35
Laboratory and rnanufacturmg ’
" - equipment : . 10

- Shorter of 7-10 years

] ‘ - orlives of leases
 Effective January 1, 2002, the Company made certain

prospective changes in the estimated useful lives of most

" of its fixed assets. This change was made to better reflect

how the assets are expected to be used over time and to

\provrde a better matching of revenues and expenses. The

effect of this change on net loss for 2002 was not material.”

Research and Development Expemes All research and devel— '

opment expenses are reflected in the Company’s Consoh—

: dated Statements of Operations as incurred.




Advertising Expense: The Company records the cost of -
its advertising efforts when services are performed or
goods are delivered. The Company recorded $7.5 mil-
lion, $6.8 million and $7.3 million in advertising expense
for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. '

Income Taxes: The provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes” (“SFAS 109”), require, among other
things, recognition of future tax benefits measured at

enacted rates attributable to the deductible temporary
differences between the financial statement and income
tax bases of assets and liabilities and to tax net operating
carryforwards (“NOLs”), to the extent that the realization
of such benefits is “more likely than not” (see Note 9).
Under SFAS 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on the difference between the financial
statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities, using

. enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the dif-

terences are expected to reverse.

Earnings (loss) Per Share: Basic earnings (loss) per share is determined by dividing the Company’s net income (loss) by the
weighted average number of shares of Common Stock outstanding. Diluted income (loss) per share also includes dilutive
Common Stock equivalents outstanding after applying the “treasury stock” method to outstanding stock options and war-
rants and.the “if converted” method to convertible debt. A reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of the basic

and diluted earnings per share computation is as follows:

2004 2003 2002
Numerator:
Net income (loss) ) $142,319,328 | $59,413,573  $(20,816,164)
Interest expense from convertible debt 1,209,465 3,316,367 N/A
Diluted net income (loss) $143,528,793 | $62,729,940 $(20,816,164)
Denominator: :
Basic weighted average number of shares outstanding 37,897,597 21,913,928 20,582,205
Effect of dilutive securities: ’ :
Stock options . . 2,372,889 3,078,860 —_
Non-detachable warrants (See Note 8) 5,542,077 6,000,000 —
Convertible debt (See Note 8) — 10,032,113 —
Other Common Stock warrants shares outstanding {See Note 12) 23,000 8,424 —
Diluted weighted average number of shares outstanding 45,835,563 41,033,325 20,582,205
Basic earnings (loss) per share of Common Stock . S 3.76 | § 271§ (1.01)
-Diluted earnings (loss) per share of Common Stock 3.13 1.53 (1.01)

The following Common Stock equivalents have been
excluded from the calculation of weighted average shares
outstanding because their impact is antidilutive:

2004 2003 2002

Stock options N 2,950,125 | 167,000 6,544,822
Non-detachable warrants )

(See Note 8) . ' g — 6,000,000
Convertible debt : -~

(See Note 8) —_— — 10,183,299
Total | 2,950,125 | 167,000 22,728,121

- Reporting of Comprebensive Income or Loss: SFAS No. 130
" “Reporting Comprehensive Income”, establishes standards

for reporting and display of comprehensive income and its
components in a full set of financial statements. Compre-
hensive income or loss refers to revenues, expenses, gains
and losses that are not included in net income or loss but
rather are recorded directly in shareholders’ equity, such
as certain unrealized gain or loss items: The Company’s
reported net income (loss) equals comprehensive income
(loss) for all periods presented.
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Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation: As permitted by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock~Based,Compensatlon”»
(“SFAS 148”), which amended SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” the Company accounts for
options issued to employees and.to outside directors (after June 30; 2000) under Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) -
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”). Consequentlv, no compensation cost has been
recognized on opt1ons issued to employees because the exercise price of such options was not less than the market value of
the Common Stock on the date of grant. Hacl compensation cost for options issued to employees been determined consis-
tent with SFAS 148; the Company s net income.(loss) and nét income (loss) per share would have been the “Pro forma”

amounts shown i the Jrollowmg table::

‘ 2004 | 2003 2002
Net income (loss): ' o - - L

As reported $142,319,328 | $ 59,413,573  $(20,816,164)

OptIOH modification expense under APB 25 B S—_ 774,368 ' —

Stock—based employee compensatlon expense under fa1r value method (24,990,213) (22,373,131)  (14,837,272)

Pro forma. ‘ ’ ' $117,329,115 | $ 37,814,810 $(35,653,436)

" Net income (loss) per share:

As reported: o .
Basic s . 376 s - 271 .8 (L.01)
Diluted © 313" LSy (LoD

Pro forma: n o T .
Basic R $ 3100 1S 173§ (173
Diluted o o263 - - - 1.02 (1.73)

Number of shares used in calculation: . »

As réported: ’ A -

Basic - 37,897,597 | 21,913,928 20,582,205
Diluted 45,835,563 41,033,325 20,582,205
" Pro forma: . . . -

" Basic . 37,897,597 21,913,928 20,582,205 .

Diluted 45,137,279 | = 40,332,908 20,582,205

Recent Accozmtmg P7 onouncements: In January 2003 the

‘Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued.

Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest

Entities on Interpretat1on of ARB No. 517 (“FIN 46”),

to expand upon and strengthen existing accountmg guid-

ance that addresses when a company should include in its
. financial statements the assets, liabilities angl activities of

another entity. In December 2003, the' FASB issued FIN

46(R) to clarify certain p'rovisidns of FIN 46 and to mod-
ify the effective date of such provisions for pubhc compa-

nies. Until now, a company generally has included anether

entity in its Consolidated Financial Statements only if it
controlled the entity through voting interests. FIN 46
changes that by requiring a variable interest entity (as
defined) to be consolidated by a company if that company

is subject to a majority of the expected losses (as defined) -

from the variable interest entity’s activities or entitled to .
receive a ma]ontv of the entity’s res1dual returns or both

I
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_FIN 46 also requires disclosures about variable interest

entities that a company, is not required to consolidate but -

~ in which it has a significant variable-interest. FIN,46(R)

was effective for all variable interest entities no later than
March 31, 2004, and in the case of certain variable interest

. entities, was applicable as of earlier dates. The adoption -
-of FIN 46(R) did not impact the Company’s financial
position or results of operations because the Company

- clo’es not have any variable interest entities or SPEs.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151,
“Inventory Costs” (“SFAS 1517). SFAS 151 requires that

* - the allocation of fixed production overhead costs be based

on the normal capacity of the production facilities and that
unallocated overhead costs be recognized as an expense
in the period incurred. In addition, other items such as

“abnormal freight, handling costs and wasted materials
require treatment as current period charges rather than as




a portion of the inventory cost. SFAS 151 is effective for
inventory costs incurred during periods beginning after
June 15, 2005. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact of the adoption of SFAS 151 on its Consolidated
Financial Statements. ’

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R,
“Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R”). SFAS 123R
requires measurement of all employee stock-based com-
pensation awards using a fair value method and the
recording of such expense in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. In addition, the adoption of SFAS 123R will
require additional accounting related to the income tax
effects and additional disclosure regarding the cash flow
effects resulting from share-based payment arrangements.
SFAS 123R is effective for the Company beginning in
the third quarter of 2005. The Company is evaluating the
requirements of SFAS 123R and it expects that the adop-
tion of SFAS 123R will have a material impact on its results
of operations and financial condition. The Company
has not yet determined whether the adoption of SFAS
123R will result in stock-based compensation charges

that are similar to the current pro forma disclosures
under SFAS 123.

3. Trade Accounts Receivable, net )
Trade accounts receivable consist of the following:

December 31,

5. Fixed Assets, net

Fixed assets consist of the following:
December 31,

2004 2003
Furniture and equipment $ 3,665,108 | § 2,386,196
Computer software and . .
hardware _ 10,548,445 8,617,067
Laboratory and manufac-
turing equipment 12,662,199 12,326,359
Leasehold improvements 15,776,388 10,675,350
Fixed assets, gross. 42,652,140 34,004,972
Less accumulated depreciation (19,311,555) (16,163,616)
Fixed assets, net $ 23,340,585 | $17,841,356

The Company recorded depreciation expense of $4.3
million, $3.3 million and $2.1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

6. Product Acquisition and Intangible Assets

As previously discussed, on March 8, 2004, the Company
announced that it had entered into a product acquisition
agreement and a finished product supply agreement with
Aventis to acquire global rights to the Azmacort (triam-

. cinolone acetonide) inhalation aerosol franchise. Under

the terms of the Aventis Agreements, Kos paid Aventis
approximately $206.1 million in cash and has agreed to
pay a royalty on future sales of another version of the
product to be developed, a chlorofluorocarbon (“CFC”)-
free product that was being developed by Aventis. Under
the terms of the finished product supply agreement,
Aventis has agreed to supply finished product to Kos for 2
period of five years. The purchase price has been allocated
based on an estimate of the fair value of assets acquired

.and liabilities assumed:

2004 2003
Trade accounts receivable $77,910,655 $40,081,737
" Less: Sales returns and - _
allowances (2,814,709) | (2,092,942)
Allowance for doubtful o
accounts (528,000) (523,100)
Trade accounts receivable,
net ’ $74,567,946 $37,465,695 ‘

4. Inventories, net

Inventories consist of the following: .
December 31,

2004 2003
Raw materials $ 2,199,352 | § 1,775,488
Work in process 4,160,583 3,440,691
Finished goods 4,289,435 1,189,946
- Total inventories $10,649,370 | $ 6,406,125

Estimated Weighted
Component Value Average Life
(tn years)
. Developed and Core
~ Technology $154,429,211 10
Supply Contract 4,050,300 5
Trademark 2,341,000 Indefinite
Other Intangibles 241,000 5
In-process Research
and Development 38,000,000 N/A
Inventory 7,000,000 N/A
Total $206,061,511
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The $38.0 million value assrgned to in=process 1 resedrch
and development of the CFC-free product was recorded as-

a research and'development expense in the accompanying

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations during -

the quartér ended March 31, 2004 (the “In-process R&D-
Write-off”). The In-process R&D Write-off resulted in :
the Company also recordmg an approximately $14. 4 mil-
lion deferred tax-benefit to account. for the difference -
between the book anid tax b351s of accountmg for thrs
write-off. : e
The amount assrgned to in- process technologv was

determined by 1dent1fymg the specific.in-process research
and developrerit projects that would be continued and -
for which (a) technological fe351b1hty has not been estab-
lished as of thé acquisition date, ) there was 1o alterna-

 tive future use and (c): the fair value was estlmable wrth -
reasonable reliability. C Co

The acquired in-process research and development

represents a smgle project, the hydrofluoroalkane R

" (“HFA”) formulation of Azmacort. The HFA formulatroo

-~ of Azmacort does not use a CFC- based propellanr and
consequently; does not deplete the Ozone Layer. The:

© Montreal Protocol on Substances that Deplete the Ozone
Layer (the’ “Protocol”) isan mternatronal creaty under
which the production and consumption of ozone- depletrng

_ substances is being phased out worldwide., Undér the
Protocol, codified by the U.S. Congress into-law in Title
VI of the CleanAir Act; the production of CFCs in the *
U.S. was banned as of January 1,'1996, unless a specific
exemption is approved’ annually by the international parties
to the Protocol. In order to comply with the Clean:Air

Act and the Protocol, the U.S: will eventually need t to ‘ L

phase out CFC- propelled metered dose inhalers. . -

The Azmacort HFA formulation had not achreved tech-
nological feasibility as of the transaction ‘date. Among the
technological matters to be resolved are: manufacturlng

controls and evidence of dose proportionality between the

75pg and 225pg formuldtions. If the technologlcal and
' regulatory challenges are overcome, sales of the Azmacort

HFA formulation could begin as early as. 2009.
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The fair value of all of the in-process research and devel-

. opment was determined using the “income approach.”

This method starts with a forecast of all of the expected

. future net cash flows associated with the i in-process tech-
‘,nology These cash flows are then adjusted to present value

by applying an appropriate discount rate that reflects the
risk factors associated with the cash flow streams, some

~ of which are more certain than others. The risk-adjusted
- discount rate utilized in calculating the fair value of the -
Azmacort HFA formulation was 36%.

*Intangible assets consist of the following:
‘ December 31, 2004 . =

) Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount ‘Amortization Amount
Developed
and Core . . ‘ -
Technology $154,429, 211 $(10,337,175) $144,092,036
Supply T
~Contract 4,050,300 - (607,800) 3,442,500
Other N o ’ )
“Intangibles 241,000 © . - (37,656) 203,344
X ‘Trademarks*' " 2,341,000 - —_ + 2,341,000
Total $161,061,511° $(10,982,631) $150,078',880

o "Indeﬁmte lived intangible assets

"The Company calculates amortization of 1ntang1b1e

* assets based on a straight-line method using estimated
" lives ranging from five to 22 years. The Company

recorded'$11.0 million of amortization expense related
to its intangible assets during the year ended December

- .31, 2004. Amortization expense of intangible assets is
“estimated to be $14.6 million for each of the fiscal years

fromi 2005 through 2008, and $14.0 million for 2009.
The Company does not allocate to cost of sales the

. ainortization charges related to the developed and core

technology. intangible asset because such amortization

is not clearly related to the productron of the Azmacort.
_ product as it:also pertains to components related to our
. ability to conduct further research and development, and

market and sell the Azmacort product. Amortization

~ charges related to the developed and core technology

intangible asset were $10.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004 and are included under “Selling, gen-

" eral and administrative” expenses in the accompanymg
Consohdated Statements of Operations.




7. Accrued Expenses
The components of accrued expenses are as follows:

December 31,
2004 2003
Managed care rebates and ‘

chargebacks $ 49,998,035 | $18,189,658
Employee commissions ) "

and bonuses 14,780,000 8,008,725

Royalties 13,811,276 2,875,583

Employee vacations 3,436,987 2,690,128

~ All other 22,871,907 11,549,296

Total accrued expenses $104,898,205 | $43,313,390

8. Notes Payable to Shareholder -

On December 19, 2002, the Company entered into an
agreement with Michael Jaharis, Chairman Emeritus

of the Company’s Board of Directors and its principal
shareholder, whereby Mr. Jaharis agreed to replace the
previous $30 million credit facility extended to the
Company on July 1, 1998 (which was to expire on
December 31, 2002), with another facility expiring on
June 30, 2008 (the “Additional Standby Facility”). In con-
nection with this new credit arrangement, the Company
granted to Mr. Jaharis non-detachable warrants to pur-
chase 1,000,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock
at ari exercise price based on the market price of the
Company’s Common Stock on the date that the first draw
under this facility occurs. The Company had no borrow-
ings outstanding under the Additional Standby Facility
as of December 31, 2004. Borrowings, when outstanding,
will bear interest at the prime rate (5.25% as of December
31, 2004), and will be subject to the terms and conditions
of borrowings made under the Supplemental Credit -
Facility, as defined below, which in addition to including
standard and customary loan covenants and conditions,
also includes the condition that the death of the lender -
shall not Kave occurred, that lender, his spouse, children
and entities they control continue to own at least 40% of
the Common Stock of the Company and that no material
adverse change shall have occurred to the Company or
its financial operations.

On September 1, 1999, the Company formally agreed
to the terms of an additional $50 million facility initially
entered into with Mr. Jaharis on October 7,-1998 (the
“Supplémental Credit Facility”). On July 21, 2001, the
Company replaced its existing $50 million promissory note
payable to Mr. Jaharis with two $25 million promissory

notes, one payable in the name of Mr. Jaharis and the
other payable in the name of Mr. Jaharis’ wife. With
this promissory note replacement, all of Mr. Jaharis’
existing rights and obligations under the Supplemental
Credit Facility, with respect to one-half of the outstand-
ing amount, were transferred to Mrs. Jaharis, and were
subsequently transferred by Mrs. Jaharis to a limited

‘partnership (the “Limited Partnership”) that she con-

trolled. All other terms and conditions of the Supple- .
mental Credit Facility remained unchanged. Borrowings
under the Supplemental Credit Facility were convertible
at $4.91 per share and accrued interest at the prime rate.
On November 25, 2003, in connection with an equity
offering of the Company’s Common Stock pursuant

to an effective shelf registration statement, the Limited
Partnership controlled by Mrs. Jaharis exercised its right
to convert $6,137,500 of borrowings outstanding under
the Supplemental Credit Facility into 1,250,000 shares

of the Company’s Common Stock. Those shares were
then sold by the Limited Partnership as part of the equity
offering. The Company did not receive any proceeds
from such sale by the Limited Partnership controlled by
Mrs. Jaharis. On December 31, 2003, all then outstanding
borrowings under the Supplemental Credit Facility, which
totaled $43,862,500 and bore interest at the prime rate,
were converted into 8,933,299 shares of the Company’s
Common Stock. The Supplemental Credit Facility termi-
nated as of December 31, 2003.

On December 21, 1999, Mr. Jaharis agreed to extend
another $50 million loan to the Company (the “Standby
Facility”). Borrowings made under the Standby Facility
totaled $19 million as of December 31, 2004, are due June’
30, 2005, and are also subject to most of the terms and
conditions of borrowings made under the Supplemental
Credit Facility. In addition to including standard and
customary loan covenants and conditions, the Standby
Facility includes the conditions that the death of the
lender shall not have occurred, that lender, his spouse
and children and entities they control continue to own
at Jeast 40% of the Common Stock of the Company and
that no material adverse change shall have occurred to
the Company or its financial operations. In lieu of a con-

. version feature, the Company granted to Mr. Jaharis

non-detachable warrants to purchase 6,000,000 shares
of the Company’s Common Stock at $5.00 per share,
which approximated the market value of the Company’s
Common Stock on the effective date of the Standby
Facility. Mr. Jaharis exercised 2,000,000 and 200,000
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warrants to purchase shares of the Company’s Common
Stock at $5.00 per share on October 13, 2004 and
November 24, 2004, respectlvely As of December 31,
2004, warrants to purchase 3,800,000 shares of the
Company’s Common Stock remained outstariding. The -
exercise of a significant number of the warrantsissued
under the Standby Facility will cause materlal d1lut10n to
' existing shareholders of the Company. v .
As of December 31,2004, all of the Companys assets
were pledged as collateral for 'the Additional Standby
‘Facility and the Standby Facility, On January 10, 2003,

" Mr. Jaharis gifted his rights and obligations under the .~ =
Company’s outstanding borrowings to his wife. All other

terms and conditions of the Additional Standby Fac1l1ty
and the Standby Facility remain unchanged:

The Company recorded $1,209,000, $3,316,000-and
$4,039,000 of interest expense for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectlvely, related
to its cred1t facilities Wlth Mr: Jaharis and his transferees.

9. Income Taxes

The Company follows SFAS 109, which requlres, among :
other things, recognition of future tax benefits and lia- 7

bilities measured. at enacted tax rates: attributable to
temporary differences between financial statement and
income tax bases of assets and liabilities.-and- 0 tax NOLs
to the extent that real1zat10n of sald beneflts is more likely
than not.”’ '
Through December 31, 2003 the Company had estab—
lished a valuation allowance against its net deferred tax

assets because there was not sufficient evidence to conclude
that the Company would “ more likely than not” realize all .

or a portion of such assets, Management currently believes,
" based on the Company’s historical profitability and on its
expected future profitability, that the Company will gen-,
erate suff1c1ent taxable income to realize its deferred tax
assets prior to the expiration of most net operating loss

carryforwards (“NOLs”) and, therefore, that the Company :

will “more likely than not’ realrze most ofrts deferred.
tax assets. . . .
As of December. 31 °2004, the Company had deferred

tax.assets of approximately $58.7 million and a remammg

valuation allowance of approximately $4.2 million. Under
. SFAS 109, the valuation allowance should be adjusted when

a change in circumstances causes 4, change in judgment
about the realizability of deferred tax assets. The portion-
of the valuation allowance related to NOLs expected to,
be. ut1llzed to offset estimated * ‘ordinary” income in the
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- current year is included in the computation of the esti-
‘mated annual effective tax rate. The portion of the val-

uation allowance related to other deferred tax assets,

" including net operating losses expected to be utilized to

offset ordinary income in future years, is reversed as of

* the date of the change in circumstances. For the year

ended December 31, 2004, the $24.2 million benefit from
income taxes in the accompanying Condensed Consoli-

. dated Statements of Operations includes the reversal of .

$71.2 ‘million of valuation allowance of which $67.3 mil-

"lion represents the portion reversed through the effectwe
" tax rate and $3.9 million relates to the reversal of valuation

allowance on deferred tax assets to be realized through
ordmary income in future years. The composmon of the

net deferred tax assets is as follows: . o
: D'ecember 31,

2004 2003
' Current: _ ) - '
Reserves and accruals $21,193,085 | $ 9,958,726
-, Tax net operating loss o
carryforwards and credits 11,972,768 o =
Intangible agsets 971,280 | . . —
_ Advance payment received : ’ -
on license agreement 7,048,622 5,705,542
* Total Current 41,185,755 | 15,664,268
- Non-current: '
Tax net operating loss . . N
arryforwards 4,181,274 | 57,891,594
' Intangible assets . 15,348,930 | 1,353,588
" Property and equlpment '
principally due to ' .
- depreciation. S (2,585,414) (1,097,220)
Other | ss2870 | 0 —
* Total Non-current - 17,527,666 | 58,147,962
Lot 58,713,415 | - 73,812,230
Valuation allowance (4,181,415) (73 812,230)
' $54,532,000 | $-  —

Excluding the benefit resulting from the $71.2 million

* reversal of the valuation allowance, the Company recorded

a_provision for income taxes of $47.0 million for the year

.ended December 31, 2004. The $47.0 million 'pr“ovision ‘

for income taxes was made up of $43.1 million in federal.
income tax provision and $3.9 million in state income tax
provision. The $43.1 million in federal income tax pro-

* vision- was. composed of $68.5 mllllon of current federal




income tax provision, offset by $25.4 million of deferred
federal income tax benefits. The $3.9 million in state
incomeé tax provision was composed of $6.0 million of
current state income tax provision, offset by $2.1 million
of deferred state income tax benefits. For the year ended

December 31, 2003, prior to the reversal of the valuation
allowance, the company recorded $2.9 milljon of income
tax provision to reflect $1.3 million in federal alternative
minimum tax and $1.6 million in state income tax liabili-
ties that could not be offset by the Company’s NOLs.

A reconciliation between the statutory federal income tax and the income tax expense (benefit) at the Company’s effective

rate for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is set forth below:

December 31,
2004 | 2003 2002
Computed expected income tax based on statutory federal income tax rate $ 41,350,145 | $ 21,802,338 $(7,285,657)
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 3,519,594 2,614,495 (749,384
Non-deductible expenses ' 1,787,705 2,928,564 1,133,120
Change in valuation allowance (69,630,815) (25,855,662) 6,901,921
Other (1,202,687) 1,389,086 —
Provision for/(Benefit from) income taxes $(24,176,058) | $ 2,878,821 § —
As of December 31, 2004, the Company had available 10. Major Customers
approximately $12.5 million of federal NOLs available to Sales to customers that were at least 10% of the
offset future federal taxable income and $152.9 million of Company’s net sales are as follows:
state NOLs available to offset future state taxable income. D ber 31
3 ; A ecember 31,
These NOLs will expire between 2005 and 2021. In addi-
tion, the Company had $4.7 million of tax credits to offset 2004 2003 2002
future federal income tax. If Kos is unable to generate suf- Customer A $184,788,262 | $ 94,496,344 § 56,694,295
ficient future taxable income through operating results, or Customer B 134,436,596 75,371,320 38,504,032
if its estimates about future profitability change signifi- Customer C 83,482,589 60,620,703 32,514,268
cantly, increases or decreases to the valuation allowance Total $402,707,447 | $230,488,367 $127,712,595

will be required through adjustments to income.

11. Selected Quarterly Financial Information (Uhaudited)

The following table summarizes selected quarterly financial data of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2004

and 2003 (in thousands, except per shave data):

First Second Third Fourth Full
Quarter®®  Quarter Quarter Quarter Year®

2004 .
Revenues, net $ 94,268 $120,250 $131,876 $150,710 $497,104
Cost of sales. 6,754 10,187 9,561 10,424 36,926
Operating expenses®® 109,093 . 73,387 77,531 86,771 346,782
Income/(loss) from operations .(21,579) 36,676 44,784 53,515 113,396
Net income®® 8,048 38,501 42,746 §3,024 142,319
Basic income per share® $ 022 s 103 $ 114 $ 134 8§ 376
Diluted income per share® 0.17 0.83 0.94 1.15 3.13

(continued)
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'Flrst . Second - Third l:ourt‘h ) Full
© o Quartér®  Quarter | Quarter Quarter = Year®
2003 B _ ' L
. Revenues, nét { $ 68275 $ 64851 § 73,506 § 87,276 293,907
* Cost of sales ' 4242 4468 -+ 5144 6185 20,038
Operating expenses - 50,604 ° 47,670 52,174 - 58,225 . 208,672
Income from operations - 13,429 0 12,713 16,188 - 122,866 . 65,197 |

- Netincome IR
Basic incomeé per share“) '
Diluted income per share®

© 12,650 11,156 14,706 20902 59,414
$ 061 $ 053 $§ 068 $ 08 3% 271
‘ 0.35 031 037 049 1.53

1 Includés the i 1mpact of the: change in estimate descrlbed in Note z Wl‘llCl‘l mcreased revenues, net income, and basic and drluted earnmgs per share by $i. 1
million, $9.9 million, and $0.45 pet share and $0. 24 per. share, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2003.

(2) Includes the impact of the “In- process R&D Write-off.” The In-process R&D Write-off resulted in the Company also recordmg an approxxmately $14.4.
million deferred tax benefit to account for the differénce between the book and tax basis of accounting for this write-off.

(3) Includes a benefit from income taxes resulting from the reversal of $71.2 million of valuation allowance, of which $67.3 million represents the portion reversed
through the effective tax rate and $3.9 mllllon relates to the reversal ofvaluatlon allowance on deferred tax assets to be’ reahzed through ordmary income in

future years.

(4) Quarterly earnings per share are calculated on an 1nd1v1dual basis and, because of rounding and changes in the wexghted average shares outstandmg durma the
 year, the summation of each quarter may not equal the amount calculated: for the year asa whole '

12. Commltments and Contmgencws

Letter of Credit Facility: The Company is. sub]ect to the

terms of an $18-million letter of credit facility with a bank ‘
(the “Letter of Credit Facility”). Under terms of the Letter =
of Credit Fac1llty as of December 31, 2003, letters of credit .

outstanding could not exceed 90% of the Company s.cash

balance kept at such bank. During 2004,.the terms of the -

Letter of Credit Fac:lhty were amended and a balance held
‘in such baitk was no longer required.As of December 31,
2004 and 2003, letters of credit outstanding totaled $15.4.-
million and $16.0 million, respectively. As of December
31, 2003, cash and cash equivalents of $17.8 million were
pledged as. collateral on such letters of credit. :

Purchase C_ommztments. During the normalcourse of its
business, the Company-enters into.short-term purchése
commitmerits for the acquisition of goods and services
needed to run its operatigns. As of December 31,2004,
the Company had open purchase commitments totallng],
$10.4 million. : :

Employment and Royalty Ag7 ‘eerments: As of December 31

2004, the Company had employment and/or royalty
agreements with three of its current officers, 1nclud1ng a

deferred compensation agreement’ with one of its current
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- office’r_s -proyiding‘ for annual payments of not less than .
- $400,000 per year for life upon the officer’s retirement.
* The liability under this deferred compensation agreement

is being accrued over the officer’s remaining periods of -
employment so that, on the expected date of the officer’s

. retirement, the then present value of the annual payments
_will have been accrued. Included in “Accrued expenses”
“as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, in the accompanying

Consolidated Balance Sheets are $1.5 million and $1.0 mil--

-lion,respectively, related to this deferred compensation-
‘agreement Salary and benefits expense recorded under the

employment agreements totaled $2.8 million, $1.8 million

" .and $1:6 million, during the years ended December 31,

2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. ,
Future minimum payments under the employment :
agreements are as follows: ‘

. Year Endmg December 31, ‘ Amount
L2005 - o $1,387,000,
20060 . - N 1,409,000
.2007 S Y 1,106,000
2008 - o . 934,000
2009 o7 C 959,000
Thereafter ' 1,068,000

$6,863,000

l Total. o s




A royalty agreement with a former officer entitled the
former officer to certain royalties not to exceed an aggre-
. gate of $4.0 million on sales of the Company’s products.
The aggregate maximum of royalty expense allowable
under the agreement with the former officer was met dur-
ing the year ended December 31, 2003. Royalty expenses
from this royalty agreement during the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, were $0.4 million and $1.7
million, respectively, and are included in “Selling, general
and administrative” in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations. A royalty agreement with a
current officer allows for certain royalties not to exceed
an aggregate of $1.5 million on sales of future products.
No royalties have been incurred pursuant to the royalty
agreement with the current officer of the Company.

The Company is also subject to a royalty consider-
ation on net sales of future products developed by IEP
Pharmaceutical Devices, LLC (a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Aeropharm Technology, LLC) utilizing technology
acquired from TEP Group, Inc. (the “IEP Acquisition”).
In accordance with the terms of the IEP Acquisition, the
Company is required to make minimum annual royalty
payments of $50,000 from 2002 through 2009. '

Operating Lease Commitments: The Company has various
operating leases that expire through 2014 for the rental
of office space, laboratory facilities and vehicles. Future
minimum commitments under these agreements are
as follows:

Year Ending December 31, Amount
2005 ' $ 8,049,000
2006 - 17,639,000
2007 ( 5,923,000
2008 3,946,000
2009 3,187,000
Thereafter 14,683,000
Total ) $43,427,000

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, standby letters of

- credit of $2.9 million and $3.5 million, respectively, were

outstanding under the Letter of Credit Facility in favor
of the lessors as collateral for these leases provided to
the Company.

Rent and other expenses incurred under the operating
leases were $10.7 million, $7.4 million and $5.7 million,
during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. ’ '

Capital Lease Commitments: The Company is the lessee
of certain equipment under a capital lease which expires
in the year 2007. The assets and liabilities under capital
leases are recorded at the lower of the present value of
the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the
asset and are included in the Company’s fixed assets.
The fixed assets of the Company include the following
capital lease amounts:

December 31,

2004 .| - 2003
Acquisition value $404,180 | $ 164,590
Accumulated depreciation (67,363) (137,144)
Capital leases, net $336,817 | $ 27,446

Assets acquired under capital leases are depreciated
over the lesser of their estimated useful lives or the term
of the lease. The Company recorded depreciation expense
related to its capital leases of $95,000, $55,000 and $55,000
for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. ’

Minimum future lease payments under capital leases as
of December 31, 2004 are as follows:

Year Ending December 31, Amount
2005 . $144,000
2006 144,000
2007 71,000
Total minimum lease payments 359,000
Less amount representing interest {19,000)
Present value of net minimum lease payments $340,000

¢
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The interest rate on capltahzed leases outstandmg as:
of December 31, 2004 was 4.25% and was based on the
Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Interest expense -
related to capital lease obligations was $8,400, $3,600 and
$7,300 for the years ended December 31,.2004, 2003 and
2002, respectwely : -

v

Licensing Agreements The Company ‘has certain hcense
agreements (the “License Agreements”) with. third parties’
(the “Licensees”) for the development of future products.
Under the License Agreements, the Company is required
to make payments to the Licensees in order to secure - -
exclusive rights to develop, manufacture, sell and/or sub-
license future products developed through the. License ~
Agreements In connection with the License Agreements
and other licensing activities, the Company recorded

licensing expense of approximately $0.5 million, $0.6 mil--

lion and $0:3 million, for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectlvely, and such expense is
reflected in “Research and development” in the accom- .-
panying Consolidated Statements of Operatlons

In order to maintain its rights under the License Agree-
ments, the Company is required to pay certain future
milestone payments_‘z‘md licensing fees. In:the event that

no milestone event occurs, the Company generally would . -

not be’ reqmred to make any milestone. payment The

Company anticipates, based on the development efforts
that have been conducted to date, that it will be requ1red
to make future m1n1mum payments as follows

Year Ending December 31, S
2005 B o . 8155000
2006 o 30,000
2007 . ; C T 30,0000
2008 - SR o 30,000 -
2009 - ‘ . K 30,000
"Thereafter - - S ~ 200,000
Todl ' - $475,000 °
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~Améunt

: In connection with one of these agreements, the
7 Company is also subject to certain royalties on net
- sales of the Niaspan and Advicor products. The Company
_recorded $2.5 million of royalty expense from this agree-

ment for each of the years ended December 31, 2004,

' 2003 and 2002. These royalty expenses are included in

“Selling, general and administrative” in the dccompany-

ing Consolidated Statements of Operations

Spomored Research; The Companv has on-going spon-
sored research agreements with certain organizations.
Under the sponsored research agreement with Triad
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“Triad”), a privately-held drug

. distovery and design pharmaceutical company focused-on

developing molecules for a variety of diseases, including
orally active therapies for diabetes, cancer and cholesterol

* disorders, Triad has agreed to perform research on behalf

of the Company relating to the design and synthesis of
molecules to increase HDL (the “Field”). See Notes 15

‘and 16 to these Notes to Consolidated Financial State-
-ments for more information regarding. Triad.. Under the
sponsored research agreements with a research center and

a university, the Company is primarily responsible for

. funding the projects, and the university or research center

is responSJble for providing personnel, equipment and
facilities to conduct the research activities. Future mini--
mum payments under the various sponsored research

L agreements are as follows:

Year“Endmg.December 31, , Amount

2005 o S $1,028,000
2006 | S 447,000
2007 and thereafter - . B o —

Total . . -  $1,475,000

The Company also funds, from time to time and at its

. sole discretion; other research programs conducted at
~ other universities and research centers. Expensés recorded

under the Company’s sponsored research programs totaled
approximately $2.0 million, $1.0 million and $0.9 million,
during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and

2002, ‘respectively, and are reflected in “Research and
* development” in the accompanying Consolidated State—

ments of Operatlons _




Development Agreements: The Company has development

. agreements with various third parties (the “Development
Agreements”). As dictated by the Development Agree-
ments, the Company is responsible for funding all required
development activities. In order to maintain its rights
under the Development Agreements, the Company is
required to pay certain future milestone payments and
development fees. In the event that no milestone event
occurs, the Company generally would not be required

to make any milestone payment.

Expenses recorded under these and other development
agreements totaled approximately $0.7 million, $0.3 mil-
lion and $0.8 million, during the years ended December-
31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and are reflected
in “Research and development” in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Operations. ‘

Contract Sales Organization: On December 17, 2001, the
Company entered into an agreement with a contract sales
organization (the “CSO”), whereby the CSO provided
the Company with an approximately 150-person field
sales organization for a two-year term beginning on
January 1, 2002 (the “Contract Sales Force Agreement”).
The Contract Sales Force Agreement complemented the
Company’s existing sales force. Under the terms of the
Contract Sales Force Agreement, the Company will pay
the CSO a royalty based on net sales of the Company’s
Niaspan and Advicor products during a five-year period
beginning January 1, 2002. The royalty amounts payable
to the CSO are subject to a cumulative minimum of
$50 million over the term of the Contract Sales Force
Agreement, not to exceed $65 million over such contract
term. Royalty expenses recorded under the Contract
Sales Force Agreement totaled approximately $16.9 mil-
lion, $6.9 million and $3.2 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 respectively, and are
included in “Selling, general and administrative” in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. -
Through December 31, 2004, the Company had incurred
approximately $28.6 million in royalties related to the
Contract Sales Force Agreement. '

Further, in 2002, the Company also granted the CSO
warrants to purchase 150,000 shares of the Company’s
Common Stock at $32.79 per share, which approximated
the market value of the Company’s Common Stock on
the effective date of the Contract Sales Force Agreement.
The warrants vested equally over the two-year period
during which the CSO provided services to the Company.
In accordance with EITF Issue No. 96-18, “Accounting
for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than

. Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling,

Goods or Services,” the compensation cost associated with

_ this warrant grant was initially measured at the date of

issuance using the Black-Scholes valuation model. The
compensation cost was then re-measured each reporting
period using the then applicable valuation assumptions,
for increases or decreases in the quoted market value of
the shares of the Company’s Common Stock through

the last measurement date of December 31, 2003. The
Company recorded compensation expense associated with
this warrant grant of $1.8 million and $0.2 million for the
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

. Compensation expenses for the warrant grant are included

in “Selling, general and administrative” in the accompa-
nying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Employee Benefit Plans: The Company’s Internal Revenue
Code Section 401(k) Plan, known as the Kos Savings
Plan, became effective on January 1, 1994. Each full-time
employee who-has completed at least 90 days of service
with the Company-and has attained age 21 is eligible to
make pre-tax elective deferral contributions each year not
exceeding the lesser of a specified statutory amount or
25% of the employee’s compensation for the year. Begin-
ning in 1999, the Company began matching employee
contributions to the Kos Savings Plan. The Company’s
matching contribution to the Kos Savings Plan is made in
the form of shares of previously unissued Common Stock.
The Company matches employee contributions up to 50%
of an employee’s 401(k) contribution, and not to exceed
3% of such employee’s compensation for any given year.
An employee is always 100% vested in the employee’s
elective deferral contributions to the Kos Savings Plan
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Notes 1o ConSolidated' Financial Statements (continued)

and vests up to 100% in the Company matchmg contri- -
bution portion of such plan at 25% vesting per year of .
employment. The Company recorded $1:6 mllllon $1.1
million and $0.8 million i in expenses related'to its match -

of employee contributions to the Kos Savings Plan for the =

years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 respec-
tively, and are included in “Selling, general a and adminis-
trative” in the accompanymg Consohdated Statements
“of Operations. - .
On February 15, 1999, the Company 1mplemented
the Kos Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 1999 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan.(the “Stock Purchase Plan”). Under the.
Stock Purchase Plan, an ehgrble employee may purchase

-Common Stock at a 15% discount by contributing to the -

Stock Purchase Plan, through payroll déductions, up to
10% of such employee s annual compensatlon Each
employee’s rotal contributions are limited to $25,000
per year.. Employee payroll deductions are accumulated
for six-month periods at the end of which shares of the-

Company’s Common Stock are purchased under the Stock

Purchase Plan. All full-time employees of the Company .
with at least 90 days of continuous sérvice at the bégin-

ning of each six-month offering petiod are éligible to par--
“ticipate in'that offering period. As of December 31, 2004, -

the Company had issued 620,228 shares of Comnmon -
Stock under the Stock Purchase Plan and had 379, 772
shares reserved for future issuance.

ll3 Shareholders Equuty (Deﬁcnt)

Pr eferred Stoc/e The Company is authorlzed toissue
10,000,000 shares of unde51gnated Preferred Stock. Such
shares of Preferred Stock may be issued by the. Company
in the future, without shareholder approval, upon such .

terms as the- Company s Board of, Dlrectors may determlne

Commin Stock: Tn ]anuary 2002, the Securltxes and-
EYchange Commission declared effective a shelf regrs— '
tration statement (the “Shelf Reglstranon”) filed by the
Company for the sale; from time to time, of up to $200
million of its Common Stock, Preferred Stock, _stock
options, warrants and other rights to purchase Common
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Stock or Preferred Stock. On October 10,>20'03, the

* Company filed a new registration statement that covered

the shares of the earlier Shelf Registration (the “Amended

" Shelf Registration”) and which allowed the Limited

Partnership to sell up to 1 ,500,000 shares of the Company’s

" Commion Stock-in a public offering; and on October 31,

2003, the Company further amended the Amended Shelf

: Reglstratlon to register an aggregate of 1,350,000 shares
of Company Common Stock held by a third party and the
~ Company’s Chairman. The Amended Shelf Registration

was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange

. Commission on October 31, 2003.-On November 25, 2003,

the Company sold 3,750,000 shares of Comimon Stock and
the Limited Partnership sold 1,250,000 shares of Common’

~Stock {converted from the Supplemental Credit Facilityy

pursuant to the Amended Shelf Registration. On December
22, 2003, the Company sold an additional 650,000 shares

‘of Common Stock and the Company’s Chairman sold-
-100,000 shares of Common Stock to cover over-allotments
_ as permitted in the Amended Shelf Registration. Net

proceeds to the Company resulting from the sale of the
4,400,000 shares of Common Stock totaled $184:3 mil-

L l10n Proceeds from the offerings, other than the proceeds

pertaining to the selling shareholders, are expected to be

~used to acquire other products or companies, to in-license

complimentary products, to fund working capital needs

_ and for general corporate purposes

Stock Optzon Plan: During 1996 the Board of Directors
of the Company adopted the Kos Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

. 1996 Stock Option Plan (the “Plan”). As of December 31,
12004, a maximum of 17,000,000 shares of Common Stock
- may be issued pursuant to stock options granted or to be

granted under the Plan. All directors, officers, employees
and certain related parties of the Company designated by

“the Board are eligible to receive options under the Plan.

Options granted under the Plan vest over four years from -

B . the date of grant. The maximum term of any option is' 10
“years from the date of grant. All options expire within 30 .

days of termination of employment. The Plan is adminis-
tered by a committee appomted by the Board of Dlrectors

o of the Companv




Each outside director of the Company is granted an option to purchase 15,000 shares of Common Stock upon election
to the Board, receives options to purchase 30,000 shares effective on each director’s anniversary date and 10,000 shares
effective on the date of the Company’s Annual Shareholders’ Meeting. The exercise price of such options is the fair market
value of the underlying Common Stock on the date the option is granted. The Company considered the provisions of
SFAS No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”) using the Black-Scholes method to approximate
the related charge to expense for all options granted to outside directors through June 30, 2000. Subsequent to June 30,
2000, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 44, which allows grantors to account for options
to outside directors under APB 25. The Company provides the required disclosures of pro forma net income (loss) and
related per share amounts under the fair value method in Note 2 hereto in accordance with SFAS 123 as amended by SFAS
148. Assumptions used in the calculation of the fair value of employee stock options are as follows:

Volatility Risk-Free o Expected Expected
Grant Date o Rate ' Interest Rate * Dividends Term (Years)
2002 66.0% 4.20% ' R 5
2003 61.0% 2.98% — ' 5
2004 60.1% o 3.15% . — 5

Based on calculations using the Black-Scholes option valuation model, the wéighted average fair value of options granted
was $25.45, $12.28 and $13.04 during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. As of December 31,
2004, the Company had outstanding options to purchase 10,107,814 shares of Common Stock to employees, consultants,

management and directors. Detail of option activity is as follows: 4
i Exercise Prices

Number Weighted
of Shares Range Average
Outstanding, December 31, 2001 : , 4,701,882  § 0.60-$36.50 $12.47
Granted : ’ - 2,182,775 10.48- 27.21 21.64
Exercised : o ' (196,132) 5.06- 22.22 8.45
Canceled . _ . : (143,703) 5.06- 3091 19.33
Outstanding, December 31, 2002 - 6,544,822 0.60- 36.50 15.46
Granted : : o . ) 3,103,375 1591~ 44.15 21.87
Exercised - : o (1,229,416)  4.28- 34.10 11.09
Canceled ) (330,514) 5.06- 34.10 19.89
Outstanding, Decerﬁber 31, 2003, 8,088,267 0.60- 44.15 18.38
Granted . © 3,334,887 29.01- 50.71 47.26
Exercised ‘ , . (1,068,168) 5.06- 34.10 14.46
Canceled ' (247,172) 10.67- 50.20 30.14
Outstanding, December 31, 2004 10,107,814
Options Outstanding . Options Exercisable
Number Weighted Average ' Number
~ Rangeof * Qutstanding Remaining Weighted Average Exercisable Weighted Average
Exercise Prices | December 31, 2004 | Contractual Life Exercise Price December 31, 2004 Exercise Price
$0.60 300,000 1.5 years $ 0.60 300,000 $ 0.60
428t 6.24 298,483 3.9 years 5.14 , 298,483 ‘ 5.14
7.00 to 10.50 . 86,825 3.8 years 7.45 86,075 7.43
10.67 to 16.00 1,029,140 5.5 years 13.35 817,882 13.11
16.09 to 24.05 4,402,114 7.3 years 2026 1,933,774 20.11
24.24 t0 36.13 - 891,789 8.4 years 30.23 290,139 27.60
36.50 to 50.71 3,099,463 ' 9.1 years B 48.71 ' 236,250 43.49
10,107,814 7.5 years $28.02 : 3,962,603 $17.73
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At December 31 2004 2 918 ,695 shares refnain: reserved
for issuance under the Plan; and options‘to purchase
3 962 603 shares of Common Stock were exercrsable

Restrzcted Common Stock Grant: On Apr1l 26 2001 the
Company entered into an employment- agreement with
one of its officers (the “April Employment Agreement”)
Under the terms of the April Employment Agreement, the

Company made a restricted grant to the officer of 66, 668

shares of Common Stock, valued at $1.2 million, or $17: 97
per share:(the fair market of the Common Stock on the -
effective date of the agreement). The restricted stock grant
vests 25% on each anniversary date of the Aprll Employ-
ment Agreement The Company recorded $0.3 million of
compensation expense related to the April Employment
Agreement for each of the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002, and such expense:is included in “Selling,

general and admlmstratwe in the accompanymg Consoh— ,

dated Statements of Operatlons

14. Lega]l Proceedmgs

On January 23,2002, the Company recelved notrce from
Barr Laboratories, Inc. (“Barr”) that it had filed with the.
FDA an Abbreviated New Drug Appl1cat10n (“FANDA”)
that, if approved, would allow Barr to market.a generic
version of the Company’s 1000 mg Niaspan product. As

a result, on' March 4, 2002, the Company filed a patent.
infringement lawsuit against Barr in the Southern District

of New York (“SDNY”). On March 11, 2002, the Company

filed an amended complaint. In this lawsuit, the Company -

asserted that Barr has infringed Kos’ 6,080,428 and
6,129,930 patents. On March 25,2002, Barr answered

the amended complaint by denying that the ’428'and 7930
-patents are valid and infringed, and seeking a declaratory
judgment to that effect. On August 19, 2002, Barr amended.
its answer to add counterclmms requestlng a declaratory -

judgment that two othér patents owned by the Company, -

U.S. Patent Numbers 5,126,145 -and 5,268,181, are not
1nfr1nged and that the *181 patent is invalid. _
On July 9, 2002, the Company received notice e from
Barr that it had filed an ANDA with the FDA that would,
if approved, allow Barr to market generic versions of | the
Company’s 500 mg and 750 mg Niaspin products On
August 13,2002, the Company filed a second’ patent
infringement lawsuit against Barr also in the SDNY
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| 'Again, theé Company asserted that Barr has infringed.
-the’428 and "930 patents. On September 3, 2002, Barr
- answered the complaint by denying mfrlngement and

alleging that the patents are invalid. Barr also sought.a

. declaratory judgment that the 428, 930, ’145 and ’181

patents are not infringed, and that the ’428, ’930 and ’ 181

- -patents are invalid. The two cases were consohdated on .

September 23, 2002.

On September 30, 2002, the Company received notice -
from Barr that it had filed a Supplemental Paragraph IV
Certification relating to the Company’s 6,406,715 patent. *

" The Company filed a third lawsuit on November 12,
4' 2002, against Barr in the SDNY asserting infririgement

of this patent. On December 3, 2002, Barr answered the
complaint by denying that the *715 patent is valid and "
infringed, and seeking a declaratory judgment of invalid--

~_ity. Barr also sought a declaratory judgment that the "428,
2930, °145 and 181 patents are not infringed, and that the

428, *930 and ’181 patents are invalid. The third case was

" consolidated with the first two on:January 23, 2003 On

March 4, 2003, the Company replied to Barr’s declaratory v
judgment counterclaims by denying that the' Company’s
patents are invalid or not infringed. The Company also

_ sought a declaratory judgment that one or more of Barr’s

products will infringe the 145 and ’181 patents. On’
March 4, 2003, the Company replied to Barr’s declaratory

fjudgment' counterclaims by denying that the Company’s

patents are invalid or not infringed. The Company also
sought a declaratory judgment that one or more of Barr’s
products will infringe the *145 and ’181 patents.

‘From January 21 through February 23, 2004, the

- Company received numerous notices from Barr that it
‘had filed a Supplemental Paragraph IV Certification

to each ANDA to provide for the 6,676,967 patent. On

‘March 26, 2004, the Company filed a patent mfrmge-
“ment lawsuit against Barr in the SDNY asserting infringe-

ment of this patent. On April 20, 2004 Barr-answered the

“ complaint by denying that the 967 patent is valid and

infringed and seeking a declaratory judgment of invalidity

-and non-infringement. Barr also sought a declaratory judg--
ment that the ’715 patent is unenforceable; a declaratory

judgment that the ’145, °181, ’428, *715 and "930 patents
are invalid; and a declaratory judgment that the *145, ’181,

7428 and ’930 patents are not infringed. The fourth case

\ygs consolidated with the first three on May 10, 2004.

2




From June 8, 2004 through July 19, 2004 the Company

received numerous notices from Barr that Barr had filed a
Supplemental Paragraph IV Certification to each ANDA
to provide for the 6,746,691 patent. On September 3, 2004
Barr filed a complaint seeking a declaratory judgment

of invalidity of the patent. On September-30, 2004, the
Company answered the complaint by denying invalidity
and counterclaiming for infringement and seeking a
declaratory judgment of infringement. Barr replied on
October 20, 2004, by denying infringément of any valid
and enforceable claim of the patent. The fifth case was
consolidated with the first four on September 21, 2004.

From November 22, 2004 through December 21, 2004
the Company received numerous notices from Barr that
Barr had filed a Supplemental Paragraph IV Certification
for each ANDA to provide for the 6,818,229 patent. The
Company is currently evaluating the notices.

The Hatch-Waxman Act provides for an automatic stay
of the FDA’s authority to grant marketing approval to
Barr that would otherwise give Barr the right to market
its generic niacin product. This stay is currently set at
30 months and is scheduled to expire on March 30, 2005.
Upon the expiration of the 30-month stay, the FDA could
grant final approval to Barr and Barr could commence

the distribution of its generic extended-release niacin prod--

ucts notwithstanding Kos’ patents unless Kos were able

to obtain an injunction prohibiting such activities by Barr.
Kos believes that Barr may be taking certain actions to
prepare for the distribution of its generic extended-release
niacin products prior to resolution of the legal proceed-
ings and that Barr could begin distributing such generic
products as soon as March 30, 2005, although Kos has no
way of knowing whether or when Barr might begin such
distribution. On March 7, 2005, Kos sought a temporary
restraining order and preliminary injunction preventing
Barr from distributing its generic extended-release niacin
products until the resolution of the pending litigation,
however, there can be no assurance that such measures
will be granted by the court. If Kos is not able to obtain
such a restraining order and injunction, Barr could com-
mence marketing and selling a generic alternative to Kos’
Niaspan product as soon as the FDA gives final approval,
which could occur as early as March 30, 2005. Although
Kos could seek from Barr recovery of any damages that

Kos sustains in connection with any distribution activities

conducted by Barr of a product that infringes a valid and
enforceable claim in Kos’ patents, whether Kos is ulti-
mately entitled to such damages would be determined by
the court in connection with ongoing legal proceedings
between Kos and Barr. If Barr were to commence selling
a generic alternative to Kos’ Niaspan product prior to the
resolution of the ongoing legal proceedings between Kos
and Barr, it would have a material adverse effect on Kos
and its business, financial condition and results of opera-
tions, and could result in the termination of its marketing
arrangements with Takeda and Oryx. In addition, Kos’
previously issued guidance regarding its projected finan-
cial results for 2005 would no longer be accurate and
Kos would have to revise such guidance.

On August 6, 2003, the Company filed a trademark
infringement lawsuit against Andrx Corporation and
Andrx Laboratories, Inc. (“Andrx”) in the U.S. District
Court for the District of New Jersey based on Andrx’s
use of the mark Altocor for its cholesterol product. In
conjunction with its complaint, the Company also filed
a Motion for Preliminary Injunction the same day. An
Order denying the Motion for Preliminary Injunction
was entered September 23, 2003. On May 24, 2004, the
Third Circuit reversed the District Court’s denial of

“the Company’s Motion for Preliminary Injunction and

directed the District Court to enter a Preliminary
Injunction enjoining Andrx from using the mark Altocor.
On June 10, 2004 the District Court entered a Consent
Judgment permanently enjoining Andrx from using

the mark Altocor effective August 15, 2004. The same
day the District Court dismissed the trademark infringe-
ment lawsuit. In connection with the settlement, Andrx
made a one-time settlement payment of $6.0 million
dollars to the Company of which $2.0 million, represent-
ing a reimbursement of legal costs, was recorded as an
offset to general and administrative expenses and $4.0
million was recorded as other income for the year ended
December 31, 2004.-

In addition, the Company is subject to the jurisdiction
of various other federal regulatory and enforcement
departments and agencies, such as the U.S. Department
of Health and Human Services, the Federal Trade Com-
mission and the Department of Justice. Individual states,
acting through their attorneys general, have become
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active as well seekmg to regulate the marketmg of pre-

scription drugs under state consumer protection and false .

advertising laws. These regulatory authorities have wide-
ranging administrative powers to deal with any failure to
comply with their ongoing regulatory oversight. These .

powers include withdrawal of a license approval prev1ously i

granted, product recalls, seizure of products and other

. sanctions for non-compliance. Kos has recently learned

that the Office of the Inspector General of the' U.S..
Department of Health and Human Services, in conjunc-
tion with the U.S. Department of Justice, is conductlng

an investigation of certain 6f Kos’ sales practices but Kos -

has not been able to confirm the scope of the-investiga-

- tion, Kos has engaged outside counsel to assist it in'con-

ducting its own internal i mvestrgatlon of its sales practices

but has not been able to reach any conclusions because of
the preliminary and uncertain nature of the 1nformat10n
of which it is currently aware. Regulatory sanction fol- -
lowmg a failure to comply with such ongoing regulatory
oversight could have a material adverse effection the * -
Company’s business, financial condition and tesults of .

operations. While the Company has compliance measures -

in place to maintain compllance with regulatory require-
ments, there can be no assurance that-employees-will not

- deviate from the Company’s policies and legal réquire-
_ments in such’a way thatit could have a: materlal adverse

The Company entered into a sponsored research agree- .
ment (the “Sponsored Research Agreement”) and a related
license agreement (the “License Agreement”), each dated - -
November 8, 2004, with Triad, which is now controlled by .

effect on the Company .

From tiifie to time, the Company is a party to other
legal proceedings in the.course of its business. The
Company, however, does not expect such other legal
proceedings to have a material adverse effect on its”
busmess or fmancral cond1t1on

15. Other Related Party Transactlon

" a limited partnership (the “Triad Limited: Partnersh1p”)

60

formed by the wife of Michael Jaharis, the Company’s

founder and Chairman Emeritus of the Company’s Board |

of Directors. At the time the. agreements were executed

, e
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| Mr".]aharis directly controlled Triad. ‘Under the Sponsored |

Research Agreement, Triad has agreed to'perform research

- on behalf of the Company i in the Field. The Sponsored
* Research Agreement has a two-year term ending September
* 30, 2005, subject to extension, and provides for total pay- .

ments by the Company during the mltlal two-year term

iOf $1.5 million.- Triad commenced the sponsored research
* in 2003 in anticipation of the execution of the definitive

agreements: The Company paid $0.2 million to Triad
in 2003 and $0.9 million in 2004 in connection with

the Sponsored Research Agreement. Under the License
" Agreement, Triad granted to the Company the right to

‘obtain exclusive, worldwide, royalty-bearing rights to all
" intellectual property in the Field developed during the

term of the Sponsored Research Agreement that ulti- -
inately is embodied in a patent claim, and non-exclusive

. rights-to all other intellectual property in the Field .
-.developed during the term of the Sponsored Research

Agreement (e.g., methods, processes, trade secrets and
technical data) that is not otherwise the subject of, or
embodied in, a patent claim. During the term of the

‘Sponsored Research Agreement, Triad may not use the

non-exclusive intellectual property in the Field for com-
mercial purposés. Following termination of the Sponsored
Research Agreement Triad will pay to the Company
royalties on income earned by Triad from the commer-
cialization of any such non-exclusive intellectual property

* within the Field. Triad conducts the sponsored research

on behalf of the Company pursuant to its sponsored

" research and license agreements with Tufts University.
" See Note 16 for more information regarding, Triad.

Christopher P. Kiritsy, ‘the Executive Vice President,
Corporate Development and CFO of the Company, has, -

- served as a member of the Board of Directors of Triad -
sin¢e 1999 as the designee of Mr. Jaharis and receives

$10,000 from Mr. Jaharis annually for serving in such
capacity. In 1999, while serving as Director of Business

“Planning at the Company, a non-executive officer posi-
tion, and before the Company conducted business with

Triad, Mr. Kiritsy acted as advisor-to Mr. Jaharis in con- -
nection with his initial investment in Triad and received
$75,000 from Mr. Jaharis for such services.




16. Subsequent Events

On January 10, 2005, Mr. Jaharis gifted his rights and
obligations under the Company’s outstanding borrowings
to his wife. All other terms and conditions of the out-
standing borrowings remain unchanged.

On February 1, 2005, the Company consummated $4
million of a proposed aggregate $8 million investment in
Triad through the purchase of shares of a new series of
convertible preferred stock of Triad (the “Series F Preferred
Stock”). Subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions,
including Triad achieving certain agreed-upon milestones

' relating to its research and development activities by
August 1, 2006, the Company will purchase an additional
$4 million of Series F Preferred Stock. The investment is
part of a $16.0 million round of financing for Triad, with
the remaining $8.0 million being provided by the Triad
Limited Partnership under similar terms and conditions
as the Company’s investment. Assuming consummation of
the second $4 million investment, the Company would
own approximately 27% and the Triad Limited Partner-
ship would own or have the right to vote approximately
48% of the outstanding common stock of Triad on a fully
diluted basis. Under the agreements related to the invest-

ment, the Company is entitled to designate three persons,

and the Triad Limited Partnership is entitled to designate
seven persons, to Triad’s 13-member Board of Directors.
Adrian Adams, the President and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, has been appointed by-the Company

to the Triad Board of Directors and has been elected by
the directors of Triad as Chairman. The Company will
appoint two additional persons to the Triad Board at a
later date. Michael Jaharis, Steven Jaharis and Kevin T.
Ferro, directors of Kos, have been appointed by the Triad
Limited Partnership to the Triad Board of Directors.

In connection with the closing of the investment in
Triad, on February 1, 2005, Mr. Kiritsy accepted the posi-
tion of President and Chief Executive Officer of Triad and
has notified the Company that he will be resigning as
Executive Vice President, Corporate Development and
CFO after his successor as CFO at the Company is found,
which is expected to occur during the second quarter of

2005. Additionally, pursuant to pre-existing contractual
arrangements, Mr. Kiritsy acquired directly from Mrs.
Jaharis approximately 1% of the outstanding Triad stock
on an “as converted” basis, representing all of her remain-
ing ownership interest in Triad. Mr. Kiritsy has also
received options to purchase 243,600 shares of Triad
common stock under the Triad option plan. The Triad

“stock currently owned by Mr. Kiritsy and the Triad stock

issuable upon exercise of options granted to Mr. Kiritsy
are subject to voting agreements in favor of the Triad
Limited Partnership and Triad, respectively.

On February 135, 2005, the Company was informed by
Aventis that it intends, by March 31, 2003, to close on a
transaction to sell the manufacturing plant where the
Azmacort product is manufactured to a third parey.

Kos has recently learned that the Office of the
Inspector General of the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, in conjunction with the U.S. Department
of Justice, is conducting an investigation of certain of Kos’
sales practices but Kos has not been able to confirm the
scope of the investigation. Kos has engaged outside coun-
sel to assist it in conducting its own internal investigation
of its sales practices but has not been able to reach any
conclusions because of the preliminary and uncertain
nature of the information of which it is currently-aware.
Regulatory sanction following a failure to comply with
such ongoing regulatory oversight could have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial con-
dition and results of operations.

Kos' Prescription for Success
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2004 ANNUAL REPORT

Repokt:Of Independent RegiStered'_Public'Accounting Firm

A \The Board of Dlrectors and Shareholders of
Kos Pharmaceutlcals Inc.

We hax;e audited the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets of Kos Pharmaceuticals; Inc. and subsidiaries as of

‘ Decembei 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated

statements ofmcome shareholders’ equity, and cash flows

for each of the three years in the period ended December

31, 2004. These financial statements are the responsibility

of the Cornpany s management. Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these financial statements based on -

our audits. . . )
We conducted our aud1ts in accordance w1th the stan- -
dards of the: Public Company Accounting Overs1ght Board

(United States). Those standards require that we plan and .

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the f1nanc1a1 statements are free of material mis- -

statement. An audit includes examining, on.a test basis,
evidence supportmg the amounts and d1sclosures in the
financial statements. An audit-also includes assessing the -
accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide

a reasonable bas1s for our oplmon

. 627 Kos’ Prescription for Success

"In our opinion, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the consoli-

‘dated financial position of Kos Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and -

subsidiaties at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the con-
solidated results of their operations and their cash flows

for each of the three years in the period ended December

31, 2004 in conformity with U S. generally accepted

' accountmg principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

c (Unlted States), the effectiveness of Kos Pharmaceuticals

Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of

. December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in
* Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the"

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated March 2, 2004 which

' expressed an unquahﬁed opinion thereon.

zmwm

" Certified Publlc Accountants

Miami, Florida,

" March 2, \2005
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